
 

  
 

 
AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 

Date: 
 

Friday, 17 June 2022 

Time: 
 

10.00 am 

Venue: 

 

The Dove Room, Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek 

9 June 2022 

 
PART 1 

1. Apologies for absence  

2. Declarations of interest  

 i. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests. 
ii. Other Interests. 

 

3. Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6) 

4. External Audit - Audit Plan (Pages 7 - 32) 

5. Risk Management Update (Pages 33 - 54) 

6. Annual Treasury Management Report (Pages 55 - 72) 

7. Treasury Management Update (Pages 73 - 80) 

8. 2021/2022 Internal Audit Periodic Report  

9. Internal Audit Charter (Pages 81 - 94) 

10. Internal Audit - Annual Audit Plan 2022/2023  

11. Financial Management Code (To Follow) 

12. Work Programme (Pages 95 - 96) 

 
MARK TRILLO 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & MONITORING OFFICER 

  
 
 

Public Document Pack



Membership of Audit & Accounts Committee 
Councillor J Davies (Chair) Councillor N Hawkins (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor E Fallows Councillor K J Jackson 
Councillor P Jackson Councillor B Johnson 
Councillor K Martin Councillor P Routledge 

Councillor N Yates Mr H Mawdsley 
 



1 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Minutes 
 

FRIDAY, 11 FEBRUARY 2022 
 

PRESENT: Councillor J Davies (Chair)   

 
 Councillors K Flunder, T Hall, N Hawkins, K J Jackson, P Wilkinson 

and N Yates & Mr H Mawdsley 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: S Jassal External Audit Manager 

 M Green External Audit Engagement Lead 
 E Bennetts Finance Business Partner 

 J Leak Head of Audit 
 K Pointon 

S Hampton 
Head of Finance 
Democratic Services Officer 

 P Trafford Democratic Services Officer 
 J Betts Interim Executive Director Finance and 

Revenues & Benefits 
62 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 

Councillors Flunder and Wilkinson declared “other” interests, being recipients of 
Covid Business Grants. Councillor Flunder declared an “other” interest, being Chair 

of a community group which had addressed future housing in the Forsbrook area. 
 

63 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

 

Mr. Mawdsley had been recorded as present twice.  

A query was raised regarding no declarations of interest being recorded. On further 
checking there were in fact no declarations made. 
 
RESOLVED – That, subject to the deletion of the duplicated attendance of Mr. 

Mawdsley, the minutes of the Audit & Accounts Committee held on 3 December 
2021 be APPROVED as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 

 
64 WORK PROGRAMME 

 

Members discussed the size of agendas and the number of items for each meeting. 

Interim Executive Director - John Betts – confirmed that every attempt would be 
made to minimise future agendas. 
 
RESOLVED – That, subject to the above, the Work Programme as published for 
2022/2023 was APPROVED. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Audit & Accounts Committee - 11 February 2022 
 

2 
 

65 EXTERNAL AUDITORS' ANNUAL AUDIT REVIEW 
 

Grant Thornton Engagement Lead – Michael Green – presented the new report 
which gave an opinion on Value For Money arrangements in 3 categories:- 

1. Financial Sustainability; 

2. Governance; and 
3. Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

 
The report was very positive, finding no significant issues or weaknesses. A number 
of improvement recommendations were made as follows:- 

1. In Financial Sustainability – in respect of potential savings plans for 2022/23 
and beyond; 

2. In Governance – in respect of a) the retention and publication sensitivity 
analysis used in budget setting, b) the Council’s engagement with 
stakeholders, c) the format of quarterly financial reports and d) the capacity 

and resources of the Finance Team; 
3. In Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness – That the Council should 

ensure that key policy documents should be reviewed regularly. 
 

66 EXTERNAL AUDIT - AUDIT COMMITTEE UPDATE - VERBAL 

 

Given the nature of the previous and next agenda items, no separate discussion 

took place for this item as all areas were covered. 
 

67 EXTERNAL AUDIT - INFORMING THE AUDIT RISK ASSESSMENT 

 

This report contributed towards the effective two-way communication between the 

External Auditors and this Committee. The Risk Assessment consisted of a series of 
questions and Management responses. 
 

Mr. Green was again able to confirm that there were no areas of concern. 
 

68 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 
 

Head of Internal Audit – John Leak – presented the report covering audit 

performance for the period 1 November 2021 to 31 January 2022. 
 

6 Audits had been completed with 5 given Satisfactory assurance and 1 Substantial. 
All recommendations had been agreed and all that were due had been implemented.  
 

Audit staff had continued to be involved in the administration of Covid 19-related 
business grants which was affecting the completion of the Audit Plan. In addition, 1 

member of staff had been seconded to the Finance section without replacement. As 
a result of this 6 audits had been removed from the Audit Plan 2021/2022. 73% of 
the current plan had so far been completed. It was expected that the plan would run 

through to April / May 2022 but this was not expected to affect Internal Audit’s ability 
to provide the annual audit opinion. 

 
RESOLVED – That the report be NOTED. 

 

 
 

 
 Page 4



Audit & Accounts Committee - 11 February 2022 
 

3 
 

69 TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE 
 

Finance Business Partner – Emily Bennetts – presented the update for the period to 
the end of Quarter 3 2021/22 (31 December 2021) with main headlines as follows:- 
 

 The Bank of England base rate increased from 0.10% to 0.25% in December 
2021; 

 A small surplus of £6,450 was forecast against investment income interest;  

 Upon cessation of the Ascent Housing LLP Joint Venture company at the end of 
January 2022, the associated loan and impaired debenture was expected to be 

returned to the council. Due to the early repayment there was an interest shortfall 

of £93,870; 

 The borrowing costs budget forecasted a total saving of £89,550, including an 

anticipated net income from the new loan arrangement with Your Housing 

Limited; 

 The average return on investments during the period October to December was 

0.14%, this was boosted by the notice account investments, whereas instant 

access accounts earned interest at 0.02%; 

 The Council’s investment portfolio totalled £18.7million spread across eight 

separate institutions as at 31st December 2021; and 

 The Council’s average external debt was forecast to be £11.9million at an 

average annual borrowing rate of 0.89%.  

 
RESOLVED – That the Council’s Treasury Management position as at 31 December 

2021 be NOTED. 

 
70 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 

 

The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2022/2023 was 

appended to the published report. A new version of the Treasury Management Code 
of Practice had been released in December 2021 and would be adopted for the 
TMSS 2023/2024. 

 
The TMSS comprised 3 principal areas:- 

 
a. Capital Programme  

 The capital plans and the prudential indicators;  

 The minimum revenue provision (MRP) Policy.  

 
b. Treasury Management  

 Current Treasury position;  

 Treasury Indicators;  

 Prospects for Interest Rates;  

 The Borrowing Strategy. 
  

c. The Annual Investment Strategy   

 Investment Policy;  

 Creditworthiness Policy;  

 Investment Income.  

 
RESOLVED – That the Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2022/23 
be RECOMMENDED TO COUNCIL FOR APPROVAL. 

 Page 5



Audit & Accounts Committee - 11 February 2022 
 

4 
 

71 REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT - POLICY & 
PROCEDURES 

 

The Council was required to have arrangements in place to ensure compliance with 
the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA). This was achieved through 

the adoption of a set of Policy & Procedures (P&Ps). Such arrangements had been 
in place since 2002 and a yearly review was required. 

 
In practice, RIPA powers had not been used by SMDC since 2008. The last 3 yearly 
inspection by the Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office was in 2019 and 

contained 2 core recommendations:- 
1. Requirement for annual Policy approval and reporting to elected councillors of 

the Alliance’s use of RIPA; and 
2. The development of a structured annual training programme. 

This annual report satisfied the 1st recommendation and future training provision for 

officers was in the process of being arranged, which would satisfy the 2nd 
recommendation. 

 
There was 1 proposed change to the P&Ps which related to the Authorising Officers. 
The amendment to the vacant Executive Director’s job title was shown in the revised 

P&Ps appended to the report and their name would be added following 
commencement of employment. 

 
RESOLVED – That the Council’s use of RIPA powers be NOTED. 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED – That the updated RIPA P&Ps appended to the report be 
APPROVED and ADOPTED. 

 
72 ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 

 

Interim Executive Director – Mr John Betts – introduced the report to members 
following an issue raised at the previous meeting regarding the relative roles and 

responsibilities of this committee compared with that of the Resources Overview & 
Scrutiny Panel. 
 

A report had since been produced relating to the Council’s use of consultancy and 
this report clarified the roles & responsibilities of the committee.  

 
The Audit Plan was reported and approved by the committee each year, however it 
was not appropriate for the committee to direct (or redirect) the work of Internal 

Audit, as that had the potential to impair the independence of the internal audit 
function. Should members of the committee highlight issues that presented genuine 

potential control / risk / fraud implications that required prompt action, the Head of 
Audit would review these on an individual basis and assess and compare them to 
other identified risks as part of the assessment of the overall control environment. 

 
RESOLVED – That the report be NOTED. 

 
The meeting closed at 11.30 am 

 

 
 

 
_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date Page 6



P
age 7

A
genda Item

 4



Commercial in confidence

P
age 8



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 9



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 10



Commercial in confidence

P
age 11



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 12



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 13



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 14



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 15



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 16



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 17



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 18

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/0fa69c03-49ec-49ae-a8c9-cc7a2b65382a/ISA-(UK)-540_Revised-December-2018_final.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

–

•

P
age 19



Commercial in confidence

P
age 20



Commercial in confidence

15

•

•

•

P
age 21



Commercial in confidence

P
age 22



Commercial in confidence

17

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 23



Commercial in confidence

.

•

•

•

P
age 24

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/601c8b09-2c0a-4a6c-8080-30f63e50b4a2/Revised-Ethical-Standard-2019-With-Covers.pdf


Commercial in confidence

.

P
age 25



Commercial in confidence

P
age 26



Commercial in confidence

21

Function Benefits for you

Data extraction Providing us with your financial 

information is made easier

File sharing An easy-to-use, ISO 27001 certified, 

purpose-built file sharing tool

Project 

management

Effective management and oversight of 

requests and responsibilities

Data analytics Enhanced assurance from access to 

complete data populations

P
age 27



Commercial in confidence

22

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 28



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

TBC

TBC

TBC

P
age 29



Commercial in confidence

P
age 30

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/97b5a417-d9bf-4649-b3c3-3ae49a350fe7/FRC-AQR-Major-Local-Audits_October-2021.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•Page 31



P
age 32



 

 

          
 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Report to the Audit and Accounts Committee 

 
17th June 2022 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
Appendices attached:  
Appendix A: Strategic Risks (by exception) 

Appendix B: Operational Risks (by exception) 
Appendix C: Project Risks (by exception) 

Appendix D: Opportunity Risks (all registers by exception) 

 
1.        Reason for the Report  

 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to enable the Committee to seek assurance as to 

the adequacy of the Council’s Risk Management arrangements in accordance 
with accepted good practice.   

 

 
2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 That the committee notes the Council’s current risk position and the mitigation 

/ fruition plans summarised within Appendix A (strategic risks), Appendix B 

(operational risks), Appendix C (project risks) and Appendix D (opportunity 
risks).  

 
 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1  The Council’s Strategic, Operational and Project Risk Registers are reviewed 

by the Audit and Accounts Committee on an exception basis. This report is 
based upon the Council’s position as at March 2022.    

 

3.2 The latest analysis of the Strategic Risk Register reveals that the Council has 
identified and assessed 16 strategic risks, of which 50% are rated as 'high' 

and therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance threshold. There have been 

TITLE: Risk Management Update (overview of 
strategic, operational and project risks)     

 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Cllr Ross Ward – Communities  
 

CONTACT OFFICER: Information Business Partner 
   

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-specific 

Page 33

Agenda Item 5



 

 

no significant changes to the strategic risk profile since last reported. The eight 
‘high’ rated risks are listed in full at Appendix A.    

 

3.3 The Operational Risk Registers reveal that the Council has identified and 
assessed 42 operational risks in total, of which 11 are rated as ‘high’ and 

therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance thresholds. The details of all the 
significant changes can be found at paragraph 9. The risks falling within the 
‘high’ category are listed in full at Appendix B. 

 
3.4 The project risk registers now cover 15 projects, with additions and 

completions adjusting this figure accordingly. The project risk profile is bulleted 
below: 

 

 0% Critical  

 5% High – 4 risks   

 70% Medium – 59 risks  

 25% Low – 21 risks 

 
 

4. Evaluation of Options 

 
4.1 There are no options to consider 

 
 

5. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

5.1 Risk Management impacts on all service areas and therefore links to each of 

the Council’s Corporate Plan aims.    
 

 
6. Implications 

 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None 

 
6.2 Workforce 

None  

 
6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies 

 

6.4 

 

Financial Considerations 
Effective Risk Management contributes to financial objectives  

 
6.5 

 
Legal 
None 

 
6.6 Sustainability 

None 
 

6.7 Internal and External Consultation 

Page 34



 

 

 
 

None 

6.8 

 
 

 

Risk Assessment 

The Council’s Risk Registers are a critical element in the Council’s 
Risk Management Framework.   

 

ANDREW P STOKES 
Chief Executive 

 
Background Papers Location Contact details 

Risk Registers – March 2022  

 

Moorlands House Information Business Partner 

Vanessa.higgins@highpeak.gov.uk  
Tel Ext 4057 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

  

Page 35

mailto:Vanessa.higgins@highpeak.gov.uk


 

 

7. Background and Introduction 

 
7.1 The Council ensures that it undertakes a deliberate and systematic 

identification of the key risks that might prevent, degrade, delay or enhance 
the achievement of its objectives and priorities. The Council's Risk 

Management Strategy sets out the process for undertaking this on an ongoing 
basis.  

 

7.2 In addition to the identification of risks, managers also have to quantify them in 
terms of likelihood and potential impact. The risks are then recorded in the 

Council's Risk Registers. These have three aspects – strategic, operational 
and project risks.  

 

7.3 Under the Risk Management Strategy, the Council’s ‘risk tolerance’ threshold 
is set along the border between ‘medium’ and ‘high’ rated residual risks. The 

Strategy stipulates that mitigating actions should be identified for all risks that 
exceed this threshold. 

 

7.4 The Council’s Strategic, Operational and Project Risk Registers are reviewed 
on a quarterly basis and reported into the Corporate Risk Management Group 

and the Audit and Accounts Committee on an exception basis. The 
appendices provide details of all risks that have been rated as ‘high’ or above, 
and therefore beyond the Council’s risk tolerance threshold.   

 
 

8. Strategic Risks 
 

8.1 The March 2022 review of the Strategic Risk Register reveals that the Council 

has identified and assessed 16 Strategic Risks, of which 50% are rated as 
'high' and therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance threshold. There have 

been no significant changes to the Council’s strategic risk profile.  
 

8.2 The Council’s risk profile is displayed below.  
 

 

Residual Risk  
Rating 

Staffs Moorlands 
Risks 

Alliance 
Risks 

Total 
Risks 

Critical - - - 

High - 8 8 

Medium - 7 7 

Low - 1 1 
Total Risks 16 

 
 

8.3 The eight high rated risks are mapped on Matrix 1 below and the three 
 opportunity risks are shown on Matrix 2. The categories of risk now recorded 
 on the strategic risk register cover a broader range of risk types than 

 before. The graphic below illustrates the risk profile across both threats and 
 opportunities and also across our Corporate Plan aims 

 
 
 

 

Page 36



 

 

Matrix 1: Risk Threats  

 
 

 
Matrix 2: Risk Opportunities 

    
      

 
 
 

Impact 
Li

ke
lih

o
o

d
 

 1 2 3 4 5 

5
     

    
 
 

 
4

     
   - MTFP 

- World Events 

 

 

3
     

   -  IT Security 
- Employees 
- Env Regs  

- Contract 
Mngt 

- Investment 
into assets  

2
    

       
- Safeguarding 

duty  

1
     

     

Impact 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

 5 4 3 2 1 

5     

 
 
 

   
 
 

 

4     

 

 
 

 Effective 

contractor 
relations 

  

3     

Housing & 

Business 
Growth 

    

2    

     

1     

     

Page 37



 

 

 
 
 

9. Operational Risks  

 

9.1 The March 2022 analysis of the Operational Risk Registers reveals that the 

Council has identified and assessed 42 operational risks in total, of which 11 
are rated as ‘high’ and therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance threshold. 
There have been a number of changes made to the risk registers since the 

last report, the most significant of which are bulleted below: 
 

 Development Services – escalation of the arboreal services risk to 
‘high’ rated due to loss of staff member 
 

 Assets – two new risks added around hyper-inflation energy costs 
(medium) and construction costs / resource availability (high). 

 
 
9.2 The 11 risks falling within the ‘high’ category are listed in full at Appendix B. A 

full breakdown of the Council’s operational risk profile is given below: 
 

Residual Risk 

Rating 

Staffs 

Moorlands 
Risks 

Alliance 

Risks 

Total Risks 

Critical - - - 

High - 11 11 

Medium 1 15 16 

Low - 15 15 
Total Risks 42 

    

 
9.3 The greatest number of operational risks now sits within Assets. An analysis of 

the alignment of risk to our corporate objectives shows that most operational 
risks relate to the use of resources in order to achieve value for money.   

 

Page 38



 

 

 
 
10. Project Risks 
 

10.1 The alliance’s project management methodology requires all projects to 
 present an assessment of associated risks at Stage Two of the decision-

 making process for project approval. 
 

10.2 Existing project risk registers are detailed below which show the addition of 

two new projects, Call Recording and Norse, since the last report:  
    

 Committee Management System 
 Leisure Consultancy  
 Assets Database  

 Collective 
 Countryside Sites 

 Cheadle Town Centre 
 Brough Park 
 Tunstall Road area 

 Sports Villages  
 Procurement Workflow  

 Building Control Partnership  
 Land Charges migration 
 Developer Contributions 

 NEW Call recording 
 NEW Norse  

 
10.3 The profile of project risk threats overall is bulleted below:  
 

 0% Critical  

 5% High – 4 risks   

Page 39



 

 

 70% Medium – 59 risks  

 25% Low – 21 risks 

 
 

10.4 In addition, a total of 34 opportunity risks have been identified across 11 of 

 the above projects and all above tolerance positive risks are reported in 
 Appendix D.  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
      

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 40



Appendix A: Above tolerance Strategic Risks 

ALT 
Owner  

Ref Risk 
Description 
(vulnerability) 

Current Controls Further Mitigation Plans  

Martin 

Owen 

SRRT 

- 2 

Delivery of MTFP 

through the 
Efficiency and 
Rationalisation 
Strategy 

 
Impact – 4 
Like – 4 
 

Effective programme and project management methodology 

for the transformation programme. Performance 
Management Framework monitors the achievement of 
Council Aims. Current efficiency programme savings - £147k 
remains to be delivered at SMDC.  Annual financial planning 

cycle includes 2 updates of the MTFP (Oct/ November & 
February) revising assumptions and known spending 
pressures to arrive at best reflection of the financial position 
over the medium term. Assessment made of sustainability of 

plan and likely impact on reserves levels. 

1. Monthly Transformation Board meetings to oversee key 

projects l inked to the efficiency and rationalisation strategy e.g. 
housing delivery programmes to facil itate growth and the 
various income generation projects. 2. Continuation of major 
procurement projects following on from completion of AES 

implementation (eg facil ities management). 3. MTFP review 
(Oct/Nov & Feb) 4. Review future savings potential in context of 
a revised Efficiency Plan.  
 

Mark Tril lo SRRT 
- 5 

Effective contract 
management 
 

Impact – 5 
Like – 3 
 
 

1. Contract register in place. 2. Clear specification at the point 
of contract appointment e.g. KPIs. 3. Allocated contract 
manager within service areas. 4. Pre-qualification checks. 5. 

Due dil igence undertaken. 6. Insurance requirements. 7. 
Bond / Financial Security guarantee for high value / high risk 
larger contracts.  8. Ensure Payments to suppliers are 
processed in accordance with the terms of the appointments 

(to ensure cash flow in supply chain).  
 

1. Procurement Business Partner meetings with Service 
Managers have a contract management focus and will  provide 
prompts for ongoing contractor checks needed 2. Updated 

Procurement Strategy will  have an enhanced focus on contract 
management, including a new Toolkit for use by contract 
managers. 3. Carry out a risk-prioritisation exercise for major 
contracts and conduct annual financial health checks against 

the most critical contractors.  4. Monitor key strategic suppliers 
in l ight of CV-19 impact on business model     5. Specific close 
monitoring and liaison with Parkwood Leisure.  Regular 
dialogue, open book accounting, cost plus arrangement in 

place. 

Mark Tril lo SRRT 
- 9 

Safeguarding duty 
 
Impact – 5 
Like - 2 

1. Revised Joint Policy in place for Safeguarding Children and 
Vulnerable Adults. 2. Council is a member of the District 
Safeguarding Network (Staffs and Derby).3 All  staff have been 
briefed on the safeguarding policy and identified staff have 

received level 1 training in safeguarding children. 4. Training 
on adult safeguarding has been provided to key staff 
members. 5. Call  recording software introduced. 

 

The Alliance Safeguarding Group meets quarterly to manage 
risks. All  staff members receive training according to a roll ing -
programme linked to their level of risk. The Safeguarding Policy 
and actions are reviewed annually through a report to Elected 

Members 
 

Neil 
Rodgers 

SRRT 
- 12 

Investment into 
council assets and 
long-term 
planning 

Asset register on spreadsheet databases and PDF docs. 
Ownership information within land terrier format. Capital 
spend identified broadly on MTFP only based on historic 
condition data from 5 years ago. 

1. Assets database has largely been completed - base data is 
included and stock condition is being entered by way of 
projects set out in point 2 below. Other tweaks and changes to 
the system will  continue as BAU.  2. Concertus have 

P
age 41



ALT 
Owner  

Ref Risk 
Description 
(vulnerability) 

Current Controls Further Mitigation Plans  

 
Impact – 5 
Like – 3 

 

 commenced stock condition project. Data collection due to be 
complete by Spring 22. (Experienced covid delays) Energy audits 
of key buildings to be undertaken before end of Jan 22. 3. Asset 

Management Plan (AMP) to be worked through to determine 
the level and extent of capital schemes and planned 
maintenance following the condition survey data and energy 

audit data. Input from Norse required once JV has gone live. 4. 
Additional capacity to be included within new Assets team 
structure (to follow the Norse JV project) to focus on delivering 
strategic asset management strategy and planning.  

 

Neil 
Rodgers / 
Mark Tril lo 

SRRT 
- 13 

Meeting the 
environmental 
regulatory 
framework (e.g. 

air quality, waste 
regs and carbon 
reduction targets) 
 

Impact – 4 
Like – 3 
 

1. Air quality monitoring equipment deployed and analysed 
externally. 2. Current service methodology assessed in 
regards to TEEP in 2015 3. Significant service change should 
be raised at Shareholder or Commissioning Board meetings, a 

revised TEEP assessment will  be conducted as part of the 
councils considerations of service changes. 4. AES contract 
enables a "change notice" to be issued by either Council or 
Contractor,  for a significant change to service. 5. Air Quality 

Plan approved by members Nov 2019, with regular update 
reports to scrutiny. 6. Climate action plan agreed. 
 

1.Implement actions outlined in Air Quality Plan and submit 
yearly progress report (service review in EH to address resource 
issues). 2. Committee approval would be required for a service 
methodology change, associated risks would be detailed in any 

report and a TEEP assessment completed. 3. Monthly contract 
meeting would provide further opportunity for service change 
discussions. 4. Implement climate action plan to meet the 2030 
carbon-neutral targets. 

 

Martin 

Owen 

SRRT 

- 15 

Financial and 

Legislative 
impacts from 
world events e.g., 
Brexit 

 
Impact – 4 
Like – 4 

Briefings from external auditors, Treasury advisors and Govt 

departments. Access to local intell igence networks on 
business trends and developments  
 

1. keep abreast of Brexit progress and respond to legislative 

impacts accordingly. 2. Treasury management strategy is 
regularly reviewed 3. Multi -agency emergency planning 
preparations and business continuity planning 4. Co-ordinated 
strategic COVID-19 response as part of declared major incident 

 

Andrew 
Stokes 

SRRT 
- 16 

Cyber risk and IT 
Security  

 
Impact – 4 
Like – 3 

1. ICT security policy 2. Staff training (ICT Use 2018)  3. 
Annual health checks.  4. IT strategy infrastructure review 

completed and IT Infrastructure project completed. 5. 
Healthcheck completed March 2020 with no issues. 6. 
Microsoft Licence audit completed, again with no compliance 

1. Develop an action plan for the new IT / Digital Strategy in 
conjunction with NEC and Socitm. 2. Regular training and 

communication updates 3. High Priority findings from the Cyber 
Risk Health Check currently being implemented. 
 

P
age 42



ALT 
Owner  

Ref Risk 
Description 
(vulnerability) 

Current Controls Further Mitigation Plans  

 issues. Infrastructure health check underway - Sept 2019 7. 
New Microsoft Licensing Agreement in place. 8. Cyber 
security funding of £6k received from the IDEA in May 2020. 

9.  New IT contact in place from the 1st April  2021 for 3+1+1 
years. 10. New IT / Digital Strategy approved.  11.  Cyber Risk 
Health Check undertaken by external risk specialists and 

reported to risk group       
 

Andrew 
Stokes 

SRRT 
- 17 

Employee 
wellbeing 
negatively 

affected 
 
Impact – 4 
Like – 3 

 

1. HR policies and procedures. 2. Staff counselling services 3. 
Flexible working hours 4. Internal communication channels 
well embedded. 5. MS Teams rolled out. 6.Agile working 

policy approved and implemented 7. Staff communications 
have continued to promote mental health and wellbeing with 
sign posting to support including the staff counselling service. 
 

1. Agile Working Policy - it has been agreed with the union that 
following implementation of the policy we will  monitor closely 
to address any issues immediately. 2. Implement training for 

Mental Health First Aiders (nominations received).  
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B: Above Tolerance Operational Risks 

Service  Ref Risk Description 
(vulnerability) 

Current Controls Further Mitigation Plans  

Assets 
 
 

Impact – 5 
Like – 2 
 
 

 
Impact – 3 
Like – 4 
 

 
 
 

 
Impact – 4 
Like - 4  

AS6 Delivery of Repairs, 
Maintenance, 
Compliance and FM 

in Public Buildings 

1. Close management of the contract. Monthly meetings in 
place. 2. Ongoing dialogue between Alliance and DCC / Vertas. 
Verbal understanding service will  continue until  31.03.22 as a 

minimum. 2. Actively looking at other delivery options - Norse 
project. 

1. C&C to transfer to Norse from 01.04.22 as Phase 1 of 
the project.  2. Mobilising the R&M service as part of 
phase 2 project due to go live 04.07.22.  

AS11 Sustainability of the 
Assets Green 
agenda and CO2 

net zero by 2030 

Input into the corporate carbon reduction plan. Further work on 
database and stock condition required to refocus on climate 
change in a revised AMP.  All  capital projects are to review the 

"green options" before implementation. 

1. Central focus in AM policy and strategy work.  2. 
Strategic approach required for AMP and Climate change 
action plan. 3. Commission Energy Audits of key public 

buildings to assist revised AMP.  4. Started EFG project 
and developing retrofit options within the HRA, util ising 
LAD 2 funding.  5. Interrogation of energy audits against 

stock condition to develop new investment programme.  
AS15 Increase in cost of 

materials, sub-
contractors and 
supply.  

 

Some contracts are stil l  in place with pricing based on original 

agreements. As contracts come to an end, prices are significantly 
increasing. Contracts are being reviewed on individual merits and 
alternative procurement options are being reviewed, however 

priced and suppliers across the board are being effected.  

1. Following phase 2 of Norse project, ongoing review 

through KPIs of VFM and cost implications of service. Seek 
alternative delivery methods for capital programme and 
repairs if possible. Seek out alternative suppliers where 

possible. 2. Apply inflationary increases to l ikely costs of 
the AMP in the MTFP to ensure that significant increases 
in costs are captured.  3. Review AMP and HRA business 
Plan refresh to capture significant levels of cost inflation.  

Democratic  DC1 Breach of equality 

regulations 
 
Impact – 4 
Like - 3 

1.Equality impact assessments undertaken                           

2.Equalities policy in place                                              3. Equality 
impact  has been written into the new project methodology 
currently being introduced. 
4. Staff training programme  delivered. 

5. Monitor completion and quality of EIAs through the Mod Gov. 
system. EIA has been revised in Modern Gov Mar 2019 
 

Revised equality objectives (using the LGA Equality 

Framework) approved at March/April  Cabinet/Executive.  
These will  be built into Service Plans for 2022/23.  First 
meeting of new Officer group to meet 11 May to drive 
improvements. 

 

Service 
Commission 

SC1 Failure to deliver 
waste and recycling 

collection services 
to domestic 
properties and 

businesses 

1. Shareholding and Commissioning Board meeting structure in 
place 2. Quarterly financial meetings held to flag up financial 

challenges. 3.Monthly Client meetings undertaken to monitor 
service delivery and performance. 4. Employees categorised as 
key workers. 5. Contractor Business Continuity Plan in place and 

reviewed regularly 

1. Would bring service back in house, vehicles primarily 
owned by the Alliance, would spot hire any required in 

short term if risk materialised. 2. Continuation of current 
controls. 3. Social distancing controls instigated by 
contractor, crews changes kept to minimum, crews 

travelling in separate vehicles, higher cleanliness 

P
age 45



Service  Ref Risk Description 
(vulnerability) 

Current Controls Further Mitigation Plans  

 

 
Impact – 4 
Like - 3 

 measures, twice weekly testing available to all   staff (key 

workers). 4. Staff from streets and parks (non-priority) 
trained to be able to undertake and support waste 
collections. 5. Contractors contingency arrangements 
have been tested in recent months and in place should 

they be required again. 

SC3 Leisure Centre 
service provision 
failure 
 

Impact – 4 
Like - 3 

1. Pre contract award supplier checks 2. Commissioning Board 
structure now in place to monitor contractor performance - two 
meetings per annum. 3. Contractor is invited to attend Scrutiny 

Committees at both councils annually to be challenged on 
performance issues. 4. Monthly client meetings to review 
operations 4. Use of large operator 5. Quarterly financial 

statements from contractor/s.  5. Financial support package 
provided by the Alliance to the supplier during covid pandemic 
due to loss of income. 
 

1. Monthly client meetings to monitor performance 2. 
Commissioning Board structure in place to monitor 
contractor performance alongside attendance at Scrutiny 
Committees at both councils annually  3. Financial support 

package given by Councils 4. Consultancy support 
obtained via Sport England to help determine impact of 
operator failure on Councils in regards to l iabilities and 

risk. 5. Consultancy support being sourced to review long 
term delivery model of operations. 6. Government 
funding awarded in Feb 2021 to help offset financial 
impact due to covid on recovery of facil ities post 

pandemic. 

Development 
Services 

PL2 Ability to deliver 
adequate Arboreal 
Services across the 
Alliance 

 
Impact – 3 
Like - 5 

1.Staff prioritise on a case by case basis 
2. Monitor impact of Ash dieback on workloads  
3.Recruitment process in place following resignation of staff 
member 

 

1. Regular monitoring of workload 
2. Recruit to vacant post as soon as possible 

Env Health Env 2 Major incident 

(requiring 
Environmental 
Health 
response/input) 

 
Impact – 3 
Like - 4 

1.Cross working , multi/minor skil led staff.                            

2. Emergency Plan in place and tested.       
3.Remote system access 
4.Good working relationship with other LA's /Agencies.             
5.Good communication network 

6.Liaison with high risk premises on contingency plans  
7. More control over officers and teams in new structure- can be 
deployed to speci fic areas more effectively. 
 

1.Focus on personal development and additional training 

for existing staff to retain existing talent (PEP process)  
2. Due to COVID 19- some backlog of inspections, Covid-
19 has impacted on Environmental Health and Licensing 
functions, additional workload.   

3. A service review is underway to ensure we have 
enough FTE to achieve the minimum statutory 
requirements. Service review stil l  in progress (April  22) . 
Training ongoing for Animal Welfare however this will  

take at least 18mths to obtain competency. 4) Support is 
needed for the Ukrainian housing inspections.  

P
age 46



Service  Ref Risk Description 
(vulnerability) 

Current Controls Further Mitigation Plans  

Finance  FP1 Risk to income 

stream/budget 
overspend 
 
Impact – 4 

Like - 4 

1. Budget monitoring                                                            2. 

Efficiency programme                    3. Consider latest intell igence 
for budget reviews                        4.Contingency reserve in place  

1. Ensure there is a provision in the General Fund on an 

annual review basis.  
 2. Monitor budget position and target specific areas 
quarterly throughout the year- the budget assumption in 
22/23 is that income levels have recovered to pre Covid 

position. The  Covid Reserves built up over the last 2 years 
remain in place (£xx SM / £xx HP). Impact of cost of l iving 
crisis on service income streams to be monitored and 

built into future MTFP assumptions at update.   
3. Resourcing of efficiency and transformation process via 
the Transformation Board monthly update monitoring. 

FP2 Pension Liability 
risk to budget 

 
Impact – 4 
Like - 3 

1. Monitoring of pension liability  2. Careful consideration of 
pension cost implications when awarding contracts 

(externalisation of services) 3. Base budgets on latest intell igence                            
4. Manage pressure through the Financial Planning process.                         
5. Close liaison with pensions authority and actuary                                                             
6. Careful workforce planning including consideration of 

potential  pension fund consequences of future outsourcing 
arrangements 

1. Flag up potential long term risks and manage carefully 
as part of the medium term financial planning process. 

Wage inflation borne out of cost of l iving crisis will impact 
future pension liabilities and Fund investment returns; 
and likely lead to an increase in Employer contributions.                                                                    
 2.The 2022 LGPS triennial valuation outcomes (which will  

become known in Q3 2022/23) will  be incorporated in 
MTFP revision (Feb 23).  

FP3 Treasury 
Management 
failure (General) 

 
Impact – 5 
Like - 2 

1. Professional training of staff  2. Professional advice and 
support  3. Careful control of lending list including investment 
l imits on institutions  through formally adopted Treasury 

Management strategy.  4. Full  compliance with the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy's (CIPFA) Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management 

1. Carry out regular credit checks and react to latest 
developments in treasury management risk. Incorporate 
into the annual Treasury Management Strategy - reported 

to Full Council each February 
2. Keep under review: the post COVID / high inflation 
economy may impact banks . The lending criteria we have 

in place should flag up early risk signs. Regular monitoring 
controls sufficient to keep within acceptable l imits. 
3. Ensure due consideration is given to risks associated 
with specific types of investment, such as in extractive 

industries 

 
 

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C: Above Tolerance Project Risks 
Project Ref Risk Description 

(vulnerability) 
Current Controls Further Mitigation Plans  

Dev Cont SPD PLA8 National planning 

reforms abolish 
S106 agreements 
 

Impact – 2 
Like - 5 

S106 agreements will  be abolished. The timescales for this are 

TBC. In any event, it is l ikely that there would be transitional 
arrangements in place to allow LPAs time to move over to the 
new system. The SPDs will  provide guidance during this period.  

 

Close scrutiny of Government announcements and the 

planning press to identify scope of reforms ASAP. 
 

Sports 
Vil lages 

3 Covid-19 Pandemic 
(impact on project 
viability) 

 
Impact – 4 
Like - 3 

Three costs required from external partners seeking to progress 
projects to confirm costs   
 

Detailed feasibil ity studies and quotations are obtained 
for more technical or expensive projects  
 

Land Charges 
 

Impact – 4 
Like – 3 
 
 

 
 
Impact – 2 

Like - 5 

LLC6 Prepare and 
Migration Stage 

and Go Live  
 
Staff Absences / 
Support  

 

Resources should be monitored on an ongoing basis in l ine with 
project requirements/deadlines. 

Resources to be monitored 

LLC7 Prepare and 
Migration Stage 
and Go Live:  

 
iLap failures to 
connect 
 

Reviewing the systems that have superseded iLap and others 
available.  
 

UPI to be created, which will  increase the LCOs work load 
 

Review into options available to use and scope 

 

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
Appendix D: Above Tolerance Opportunity Risks  
  ALT Owner Ref Opportunity Controls Fruition Plans  

Strategic 

Neil Rodgers 
 
Impact – 5 
Like - 3 

SRRO 
- 1 

Housing Growth 
 
 

1. Affordable Homes Programme. 2. Empty 
Homes Strategy in place. 3. Accelerated 
Housing Delivery Programme 4. SM Local Plan 
adopted in 2020. 

1. Empty homes strategy implementation. 2. Focus on growth agenda 
through Local Plan delivery - realisation of Accelerated Housing 
Delivery Programme. 3. Work with Homes England to access funding 
to support housing growth.  4.  In Progress - disposal of remaining 

Council owned sites being programmed for 2023/24. 
Neil Rodgers 
 
Impact – 4 
Like - 4 

SRRO 
- 2 

Business Growth 
 
 

1. Growth Hub referrals. 2. County working 3. 
Provision of employment units 4. Business 
Newsletters advising of grant funding 
opportunities and training events to help 

businesses survive and flourish 

1. Implement the accelerated business growth and employment 
programme. 2. Work with LEP partners to access vital funding to 
support business growth. 3 New business support schemes provided 
by CRF programmes. Use of ARG funding to provide enhanced business 

support.  
Mark Tril lo 
 
Impact – 3 
Like - 4 

SRRO 
- 4 

Effective contractor 
relationships 
 
 

Current procurement and contract 
management arrangements 

1. Greater focus on Council as commissioner  2. Effective contract 
management arrangements that build up effective partnership 
arrangements  3. Focus on Contract Management within the 
Procurement Strategy (Information Digest Report released June 2021). 

New Strategy expected June 2022. 
Operational 
Tanya  

Cooper 
 
Impact – 3 
Like - 4 

ODTO

R1 

Efficiency opportunities 

arising from the 
implementation of new 
IT systems 
 

 

IT strategy being evaluated to create a clearer 

picture of the way forward and the required 
actions 
 

Background work around the IT strategy is being evaluated in 2022 

 

Projects 
Ben Haywood 
– Building 

Control  
P’ship 
 

Impact – 4 
Like - 4 

BCOP
1 

Opportunity to improve 
the Building Control  

service 
 
 

DBCP will  provide a bi -monthly management 
report which details financial performance 

including the number of applications. sales 
and income. They also supply a bi -monthly PR 
report detail ing marketing activity and details 

of significant applications  An annual Service 
Review and Update will  be provided at the 
beginning of each financial year, measuring 
DBCP performance against the Service Level 

Agreement. Agreed as part of the Contract 
arrangement which are now complete. 

SLA to be agreed as part of the proposal  
 

P
age 51



Elaine 
Hallworth – 
Procurement 
Workflow 

PWO
pp1 

Improved business 
intell igence and 
reporting function 
 

Impact – 3 
Like – 4 

Limited reporting function in the current 
system but an improved reporting function 
has been highlighted as an outline deliverable 
and is part of the critical success criteria  

1.New system specifications  include an improved reporting function 
2. Critical  success criteria includes an improved reporting function 
2022-23  
 

Sarah Porru – 
Tunstall  Road 
 

Impact – 4 
Like - 3 

1 Delivery of up to 105 
homes and 20,000 sqft 
employment space 

(generating £0.12m 
gross income) + 
additional 11 

employment site plots 
for re-sale (60,000 sqft) -
delivery of Local plan 
site and additional 

income to council from 
business rates & council 
tax.  There remains risk 

that without works 
outlined, the project will  
not be able to progress 
which could reduce 5-

year supply and will  see 
loss of business due to 
lack of b1/b2 
accommodation.     

A masterplan of site options and layouts was 
completed in 2018, with owners input, to 
inform local plan. It recommended follow up 

work to Recommended next steps:  
-  Formal valuations of the two residential 
properties which are included  

-  Prepare and undertake land equalisation 
proposals including undertaking negotiations 
with landowners 
-  Preparation of business case for council to 

consider purchase of part of site/ marketing 
of site to developers and/or  procurement                                                                  
 

1. Continued liaison with Homes England so project trajectory on their 
radar (potential funding) 2. Continued liaison with LEP re project as SS 
LEP pipeline (although project is would not be shovel ready until  

second stage work undertaken).  
 

Nicola Kemp – 

Brough Park  
 
All  
Impact – 4 

Like - 3 

BP1 Develop a committed 

community group who 
will  take ownership of 
the recreation area 

Play inspections occur regularly by staff Regular contact with community group members to encourage 

support for the project and establish community ownership of the play 
area site. 

BP2 Support a community 
group to access further 

external funding to 
enhance the site 

There are l imited funding options available to 
local councils 

Explore funding opportunities that may be available that are 
appropriate to the site and can easily be accessed by the community 

group 

BP3 Promoting physical 
activity with a range of 
external partners 

Further improvement works are planned at 
the site and these would all  benefit people’s 
health and well -being 

The installation of the new play area will  promote interest from the 
local community will  provide a solid foundation for us to build upon 
and encourage activity opportunities and extended use of a well -

P
age 52



managed open space 

BP4 Enhance the offering 
from John Hall Garden 

Limited public interaction with the site in its 
current form 

Improvements to the site will  encourage more people to visit and in-
turn make a more viable offering. Work will  be required to promote 
the offering and engage the public to attend. 

Nicola Kemp – 
Country Sites 

 
Impact -3 
Like - 4 

CSi1 Management of the sites 
by a charity will  

inherently open 
opportunities to funding 
not open to a LA. 

SWT is an existing charity so will be aware of 
funding opportunities. 

Successful funding opportunities to be recorded to demonstrate 
success. 

Ben Haywood 
– Land 

Charges 
 
Impact – 3 
Like - 4 

LLCO
P1 

Opportunity to cleanse 
data and streamline the 

process 
 
 

HMLR provide a service whereby the data can 
be sent and cleansed to assist with the 

preparation stage of the project. 
 

1. Data cleanse will  take place before the migration using the HMLR 
service (for Staffs Moorlands data ) 

Neil Rodgers 

– Norse 
 
Impact – 4 

Like - 5 

ANO1 New IT systems – 

Connect 
 
 

Ensure all  information requested is provided 

at the right time for development 

Develop IT process maps to ensure all  areas are identified. Once this 

has been identified, project plan will  identify key target dates for 
information. 

Nicola Kemp – 

Collective 
 
Impact – 3 

Like – 4 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Impact – 4 
Like – 4 

1 Reduction in missed bins 

 
 

GOSS online calendars have been designed 

with the info  residents need in mind to 
reduce chance of resident error re bin 
type/day 

 
IEG4 forms are be configured to prevent 
submission of missed bin form unless a 
genuine miss. Forms partially return list of 

contaminates - increases recycling education 
but could do more 
 
Bartec events have been developed to cover 

many scenarios, which will feed the IEG4 
forms to prevent missed bins being submitted 
unless genuine 

Design  customer facing material focusing on the info residents need & 

get feedback 
 
Increase accuracy of events & resident comms - additional training has 

been delivered to ensure  drivers & supervisors are confident in the 
event logging process. Project team wil l  create additional events and 
automations to increase accuracy and remove need for manual 
updates   

 
Improve IEG4 form functionality for 'why has my bin not been 
emptied' to include more reasons / read job statuses - this is expected 
mid Feb  

2 Improved system 

integrations 
 

Project team has improved technical 

capabilities & have developed an advanced 
understanding of the system capabilities with 

Identify the level of ongoing system & integration 'ownership' required 

to carry it forward post implementation to achieve project objectives, 
and change with the times as technology progresses post 

P
age 53



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Impact – 2 
Like - 5 

 specialist technical skills  
 
GOSS online calendars  retrieve live schedule 
info and translate into easy to read/check 

calendars  
 
IEG4 forms retrieve LIVE relevant data from 

Bartec to prevent submission of inaccurate 
webforms, or customer contact that is 
unnecessary 

implementation. 
 
Steering group to highlight where enhancements of these integrations 
could improve successful operation via Enhanced use of Bartec,  GOSS 

+  IEG4 through API technology, and design service requests best fit to 
both the system and the service with user needs at forefront  

3 Off site hosting & 
futureproofing 

 
 

Bartec being hosted means AES staff can 
access it from Cheshire East's networks as 

required, rather than via multiple connections 
into HPSM networks  
 
Flare will  not be removed from HPSM's server 

estate though as it is used by Environmental 
Health stil l  

Not expected to be moved off FLARE entirely until  the latter part of 
2022, so none to mention at this stage 

   
 

P
age 54



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Audit & Accounts Committee 
 

17 June 2022 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Annual Treasury Management Report 
 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 

Councillor Worthington – Portfolio Holder for 
Finance 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

Keith Pointon – Head of Finance 
Emily Bennetts – Finance Business Partner 

 
WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 
Non-specific 

 
 

Appendices Attached – Appendix A: Annual Treasury Management Report 

2021/22 

 
1. Reason for the Report 

 

1.1 The purpose of the report is to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s 

Treasury Management performance in 2021/22 in compliance with the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management and generally accepted good practice. 

 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the Annual Treasury Management Report 2021/22 is recommended to 
Council for approval. 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 The Council is required through regulations issued under the Local 
Government Act 2003 to produce an annual treasury report reviewing treasury 
management activities for 2021/22. 

 
3.2 The Annual Treasury Management Report for 2021/22 considers the following 

areas: 

 The Council’s capital expenditure and overall borrowing need during the year; 

 

 Compliance with Prudential Indicators, showing the outturn against those 
Indicators formally adopted in the 2021/22 Treasury Management Strategy 

Statement; 
 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6



  

 A review of the Treasury Management Strategy and the economic 
environment during the year; 
 

 The Council’s borrowing outturn; 
 

 The Council’s capital loan (service investment – housing) activity; 
 

 The Council’s investment portfolio, and performance, including a summary on 
investments with Environmental, Social, Governance (ESG) positive links. 
 

3.3 The Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer confirms that borrowing was 
only undertaken for a capital purpose and the statutory borrowing limit (the 

authorised limit) was not breached. 
 

3.4 The main headlines include: 

 

 Capital expenditure in 2021/22 totalled £13million, including a £10million 

capital loan (service investment – housing) to Your Housing Ltd. Capital 
expenditure was partly funded via capital receipts, reserves and contributions; 
the remainder has created a borrowing requirement of £6.3million. 

 

 Total external debt at 31st March 2022 amounted to £12.6million. There was 

an underspend of £34,600 against borrowing costs. 
 

 £468,075 interest income was earned from the maturing debenture and loan 
balances held with Ascent Housing LLP and the new capital loan (service 
investment - housing) to Your Housing Limited.  There was an overall shortfall 

of £54,805 against the budget due to the reduction of the overall loan value 
and falling interest rates. 

 

 The average daily investment portfolio during 2021/22 was £12.4million 

invested with a total of nine institutions, yielding £42,825 in investment 
income. There was a £22,329 surplus against the investment income budget 
following increases in the Bank of England base rate in quarter 4. 

 

 The average return achieved by the Council on its investment portfolio for the 

year was 0.20%. Year-end investments totalled £27.3million, all internally 
managed by the Council’s Treasury Management Team. 

 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 An effective Treasury Management function is critical in safeguarding and 
effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. 
Sufficient financial resources are required to deliver and underpin the 

Council’s main priorities. 
 
5. Alternative Options 

 
5.1 This report sets out the Treasury Management position for Staffordshire 

Moorlands District Council for 2021/22. As such it is a statement of fact and 
there are no options to consider. 

Page 56



  

 
 
 

Martin Owen 
Executive Director (Finance and Customer Services) 

 

 
Web Links and 

Background Papers 

Contact details 

 
‘Treasury Management Strategy 2021/22’ 

Audit & Accounts Committee February 2021 
 

Keith Pointon 
Head of Finance 

Keith.Pointon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
 
Emily Bennetts 

Finance Business Partner 
emily.bennetts@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
APPENDIX A 

 

 
 
 

Annual Treasury Management 
Report 

 

2021/22 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

June 2022 

Page 59



  

1 Introduction and Background 

 
1.1 The Council is required through regulations issued under the Local Government 

Act 2003 to produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the 
actual prudential and treasury indicators for the year. This report meets the 
requirements of both the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

(CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA 
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).  

 
1.2 During 2021/22 the minimum reporting requirements were that the full Council 

should receive the following reports: 

 an annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Council 24th February 2021) 

 a mid-year treasury update report (Council 13th October 2021) 

 an annual treasury report (this report). 
 

In addition, this Council has received quarterly treasury management update 
reports (Audit & Accounts Committee 25th June 2021 and 11th February 2022). 
Scrutiny to all treasury management reports was provided by the Audit & Accounts 

Committee before being reported to the full Council.  
 

1.3 The regulatory environment places responsibility on Members for the review and 
scrutiny of Treasury Management policy and activities. This report provides details 
of the outturn position for treasury activities and highlights compliance with the 

Council’s policies previously approved by Members.   
 

1.4 This report covers: 
 

 Capital expenditure and the overall borrowing need 

 The Council’s treasury position at the end of the year 

 Strategy & Economy for the year 

 Borrowing outturn  

 Capital loan (service investment – housing) 

 Investment performance & portfolio, including Ethical investing 

 
1.5 Treasury Limits and Treasury management and Prudential Indicators were set 

within the Treasury Management Strategy 2021/22.  The Council has complied 
with all indicators. Details of these are embedded throughout this report. 

 
2 The Council’s Capital Expenditure & Borrowing Requirement 2021/22 

 

2.1 The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets. These activities 
may either be financed: 

 through the application of capital or revenue resources (including capital 
receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.); this form of financing 
does not impact on the Council’s borrowing need; or 

 by borrowing, where there is insufficient internal resource or where a 
decision is taken to finance expenditure externally. 

 
  

Page 60



  

2.2 Capital expenditure constitutes one of the required prudential indicators. The table 

below shows actual capital expenditure for 2021/22 and how this was financed: 
 

  
31st March 

2021 
2021/22 

31st March 
2022 

  Actual Budget 
Provisional 

Outturn* 

Capital expenditure £3,097,305 £4,689,000 £13,044,920 

Financed by:       

External contributions £949,143 £1,512,000 £1,136,616 

Capital & earmarked reserves £741,355  - £2,415,153 

Capital Receipts £93,616 £25,000 £3,221,750 

Unfinanced capital 
expenditure/  
borrowing need 

£1,313,191 £3,152,000 £6,271,401 

* Subject to change as Closure of Accounts process ongoing at time of writing  

 
2.3 The increase in the provisional outturn of the capital expenditure compared to the 

budget is owing to the capital loan (service investment – housing) of £10milllion to 
Your Housing Limited. This is described in more detail at paragraph 6. It is partly 

funded by the £3.4million capital receipt from the maturing Ascent Housing LLP 
debenture and £1.1million from the Ascent reserve, with the remainder increasing 
the borrowing need.  

 
2.4 The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the 

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).  It represents the cumulative capital activity 
of the Council in the current and prior years which is as yet unfinanced, i.e. has not 
yet been paid for by revenue or other resources. 

 
2.5 The 2021/22 capital expenditure (provisional outturn) is partly funded by capital 

receipts, reserves and external contributions; the remainder has created a 
provisional outturn borrowing need of £6,271,401, which increases the CFR. 
 

2.6 The Treasury Management team plans the Council’s cash position to ensure 
sufficient cash is available to meet capital plans and cash flow requirements. This 
may be sourced through borrowing from external bodies (such as the Public Works 

Loan Board or the money markets), or utilising temporary cash resources within 
the Council. 

 
2.7 The Council’s underlying borrowing need (CFR) is not allowed to rise indefinitely. 

Statutory controls are in place to ensure that capital assets are broadly charged to 

revenue over the life of the asset. The Council is required to make an annual 
revenue charge, called the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), to reduce the 

CFR.  This is effectively a revenue repayment of the cumulative borrowing need.   
 

2.8 The CFR can also be reduced by the application of additional capital financing 

resources, such as unapplied capital receipts; or charging more than the statutory 
revenue charge (MRP) through a Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP). 

Page 61



  

 

2.9 The Council’s 2021/22 MRP Policy was approved (as required by the Department 
of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) guidance) as part of the 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2021/22 on 24th February 2021. 
 

2.10 During the life of the Loan facility provided to Ascent Housing LLP (£14million), 

MRP was not provided for this item of capital expenditure due to the expectation 
that the loan would be repaid in full upon maturity. The loan was repaid in full in 

January 2022; therefore the £14million capital receipt has been applied as VRP to 
reduce the CFR. 
 

2.11 The Council’s CFR for the year is shown below, and represents a key prudential 
indicator.  

 

  
31st March 

2021 
2021/22 

31st March 
2022 

Capital Financing Requirement Actual Budget 
Provisional 

Outturn* 

Opening balance £16,828,071 £18,163,000 £18,081,986 

Unfinanced capital expenditure/  
borrowing need 

£1,313,190 £3,152,000 £6,271,401 

Less MRP/VRP -£59,275 -£87,000 -£14,085,538 

Closing balance £18,081,986 £21,228,000 £10,267,849 

* Subject to change as Closure of Accounts process ongoing at time of writing 

 
2.12 Borrowing activity is constrained by Prudential Indicators for gross borrowing and 

the CFR, and by the Authorised Limit.  In order to ensure that borrowing levels are 

prudent over the medium term and only for a capital purpose, the Council should 
ensure that its gross external borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed 

the total of the CFR in the current year (2021/22) plus the estimates of any 
additional CFR for the next two financial years. This essentially means that the 
Council is not borrowing to support revenue expenditure. The indicator allows the 

Council some flexibility to borrow in advance of its immediate capital needs.  
 

2.13 The table below highlights the Council’s borrowing position against the CFR: 
 

  
31st March 

2022 
31st March 

2023 
31st March 

2024 

  Provisional Forecast* Forecast* 

Gross borrowing position £12,604,400 £10,104,400 £11,104,400 

CFR £10,267,849 £11,987,213 £13,773,350 

Over/ (under) borrowed £2,336,551 -£1,882,813 -£2,668,950 

* Per MTFP February 2022, updated for current year provisional outturn borrowing need 

 

Page 62



  

2.14 At the end of 2021/22 the gross borrowing position exceeds the CFR by 

£2,336,551 due to borrowing undertaken in February 2022 with the PWLB to align 
with the capital loan (service investment – housing) to Your Housing Limited, 

described in more detail in paragraph 6. Repayment of local authority loans 
maturing in 2022/23 will reduce the borrowing position below the CFR, therefore 
the Council has complied with the prudential indicator. 

 
2.15 The Authorised Limit is set in the Treasury Management Strategy in advance of 

each year, as required by s3 of the Local Government Act 2003; once set the 
Council does not have power to borrow above this level. The Operational 
Boundary, also set in the Treasury Management Strategy, is the expected 

borrowing position of the Council during the year. Periods where the actual 
position is either below or above the boundary are acceptable subject to the 

authorised limit not being breached. The table below shows the Council has 
maintained gross borrowing within its authorised limit and operational boundary. 
 

2.16 The ‘financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream’ is used as an indicator 
to identify the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing costs, net of investment 

income) against the net revenue stream of the Council. The negative percentage 
shows that financing costs are a net income. 
 

  2021/22 
31st March 

2022 

  Budget 
Provisional 

Outturn* 

Authorised limit £34,549,000 £34,549,000 

Maximum gross borrowing position during the year £17,076,000 £15,000,000 

Operational boundary £33,049,000 £33,049,000 

Average gross borrowing position £17,076,000 £11,781,425 

Financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream  -3.38% -2.53% 

 
 

  

Page 63



  

3 The Current Treasury Position 

 

3.1 The Council’s treasury management debt and investment position is organised by 

the treasury team in order to ensure adequate liquidity for revenue and capital 
activities, security for investments and to manage risks within all treasury 
management activities. Procedures and controls to achieve these objectives are 

well established both through member reporting and through officer activity in 
accordance with the Council’s Treasury Management Practices. The table below 

shows the Council’s treasury position at the end of 2021/22 and a comparison with 
the previous year: 

 

 
  2021/22 2020/21 

  
Principal at 
31st March 

Average 
annual 

principal 

Average 
annual 
interest 

rate/ 
return 

Principal at 
31st March 

Average 
annual 

principal 

Average 
annual 
interest 

rate/ 
return 

Debt 

PWLB £4,604,400 £630,740 2.07%       

Local Authority 
Loans 

£8,000,000 £11,150,685 0.80% £15,000,000 £13,538,356 0.88% 

Total £12,604,400 £11,781,425 0.87% £15,000,000 £13,538,356 0.88% 

Capital Financing 
Requirement* 

£10,267,849     £18,082,603     

Over/ (under) 
borrowed 

£2,336,551     -£3,082,603     

*current year subject to change as Closure of Accounts process ongoing at time of writing 

Capital Loan (service investment - Housing) 

Your Housing 
Limited 

-£10,000,000 -£1,534,247 3.07%       

Ascent Housing 
LLP (Debenture) 

£0 -£4,232,877 1.88% -£5,000,000 -£5,000,000 2.00% 

Ascent Housing 
LLP (Loan) 

£0 -£11,852,055 2.88% -£14,000,000 -£14,000,000 3.60% 

Total -£10,000,000 -£17,619,178 2.66% -£19,000,000 -£19,000,000 3.18% 

              

Treasury 
management 
investments 

-£27,286,096 -£21,389,659 0.20% -£18,399,000 -£19,719,937 0.22% 

              

Net Debt/ 
(income) 

-£24,681,696 -£27,227,412 1.50% -£22,399,000 -£25,181,581 2.10% 

 
 

  

Page 64



  

4 2021/22 Treasury Management Strategy & Economic Conditions 

 

4.1 The expectation for interest rates amongst forecasters at the time of setting the 

treasury management strategy for 2021/22 was that Bank Rate would remain at 
0.10% following the emergency cut at the start of the Covid-19 pandemic for the 
medium term and therefore returns on the Council’s balances would be very low, 

with borrowing rates similarly depressed. 
 

4.2 This was indeed the case for much of the year with the average interest rate 
achieved in the first three quarters being 0.14%, boosted only by the Council’s 
notice accounts. Towards the end of the year, with growing inflationary pressures, 

the Bank of England raised the base rate three times: to 0.25% on 16th December 
2021; 0.50% on 3rd February 2022; and 0.75% on 17th March 2022. The impact of 

this began to trickle through to the Council’s investments and notice and instant 
access accounts resulting in an average investment income in quarter four of 
0.33%, increasing the overall average for the year to 0.20%. 

 
4.3 Cash balances remained high during the year whilst the Council was in receipt of 

Central Government funding to deliver various schemes to support residents and 
businesses during the Covid-19 pandemic and the current increasing inflation 
climate. The counterparty limits in the Treasury Management Strategy Statement 

for 2021/22 were set to be flexible to respond to this situation specifically; reporting 
any instance where the limits were exceeded in the quarterly treasury 
management update reports, as opposed to generally extending the limits which 

would have reduced the controls over counterparty risk. There were three such 
instances: the current account limit was exceed by a maximum 15% for 3 days in 

April; 3% for 2 days in August; and 11% for 4 days in October 2021.  
 
  

Page 65



  

5 Borrowing Outturn  

 
5.1 External borrowing activity during 2021/22 and the maturity profile at year end are 

shown in the tables below: 
 

Amount Lender Interest Rate Term Month 

£15,000,000 External borrowing 1
st

 April 2021 
   

Matured Loans 
  

Maturing 

£2,000,000 Bridgend County Borough Council 0.15% 6 months May 

£1,000,000 
Police & Crime Commissioner for West 
Midlands 

0.40% 1 year August 

£1,000,000 Mid Devon District Council 0.22% 1 year October 

£2,000,000 Lichfield District Council 0.25% 1 year November 

£1,000,000 Ryedale District Council 0.25% 1 year December 

£7,000,000 Total 
   

    
   

New Loans 
  

Starting 

£4,604,400 PWLB 2.07% 10 years February 

£4,604,400 Total  
   

    
   

£2,395,600 Net decrease in external borrowing 
   

£12,604,400 External borrowing 31
st

 March 2022 
   

    
   

  Average borrowing during the year 
   

£630,740 PWLB 2.07% 
  

£11,150,685 Local Authority Loans 0.80% 
  

£11,781,425 Total 0.87% 
  

 

 
 
  

£0

£1,000,000

£2,000,000

£3,000,000

£4,000,000

£5,000,000

£6,000,000

Less than 1 year 1 - 2 years 2 - 5 years 6 - 10 years

Maturity Profile at 31st March 2022 

Page 66



  

 

Maturity structure of 
borrowing 

Fixed rate Variable rate 

Upper limit 
set 2021/22 

As at 31st 
March 2022 

Upper limit 
set 2021/22 

As at 31st 
March 2022 

under 12 months 100% 40% 100% 0% 

12 months to 2 years 100% 24% 50% 0% 

2 to 5 years 100% 0% 0% 0% 

5 to 10 years 100% 37% 0% 0% 

more than 10 years 100% 0% 0% 0% 

 
5.2 External borrowing from other local authorities during the year supported the loan 

to Ascent Housing LLP and other general fund capital expenditure. Borrowing from 
the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) was undertaken in February 2022 for a 

period of 10 years. This borrowing was in advance of need (pending the maturity 
of local authority loans in 2022) and was taken in order to align with the capital 
loan (service investment – housing) to Your Housing Limited, which is described in 

more detail in paragraph 6, to avoid the risk of interest rate fluctuation at a later 
date. The carrying cost of the difference between interest paid on such debt and 

interest received from temporarily investing the resulting surplus funds is partially 
being negated by increasing interest rates following the Bank of England base rate 
rises. 

 
5.3 The cost of borrowing in the year was £189,780. The budget for the year was set 

at £224,580 with an anticipation of a greater borrowing requirement and 
associated costs, therefore an underspend of £34,600 is reported.  
 

5.4 There has been no rescheduling of debt during the year. 
 

6 Capital Loan (Service Investment – Housing) 

 
6.1 The Council had provided a £14million priority loan (from a £20million facility) and 

a £5million debenture capital investment to Ascent Housing LLP, a joint venture 
between the Council and Your Housing Group Limited providing affordable 

housing throughout the Staffordshire Moorlands. Interest was chargeable in the 
year on the loan at an average 2.88% and on the debenture at 1.88%. On 26th 
January 2022, the Ascent Housing LLP portfolio of properties was sold, and the 

Council’s membership transferred, to Your Housing Limited. Upon the sale, a 
Capital receipt of £17,144,500 was received (£14million relating to the priority loan; 

and £3,144,500 to the impaired debenture (losses shared equally between the 
Council and Your Housing Group Limited)).  
 

6.2 A new capital loan (service investment – housing) of £10million was made to Your 
Housing Limited on 4th February 2022, with a maturity term of 10 years. The 

purpose of the loan is to support the maintenance of and provision of affordable 
housing within the Staffordshire Moorlands District. Interest is chargeable at a 
fixed rate of 3.07% (including a 0.80% risk premium). 

 

Page 67



  

6.3 Interest payments receivable by the Council from Ascent Housing LLP for the year 

were £341,193 for the loan and £79,781 for the Debenture; and from Your Housing 
Limited £47,101. The combined average interest rate return for the year was 

2.66%. The budget for the year was set at £522,880 anticipating a continuation of 
the existing loan value. The reduction to £10million compounded by falling interest 
rates resulted in an income shortfall of £54,805. 

 
7 Investment Performance & Portfolio 

 
7.1 The investment performance of the Treasury Management function is dependent 

upon a number of factors, including the size of available investment balances; the 

market interest rates available; the timing of capital spend; and the restrictions 
placed on the Council by its approved Lending List.  

 
7.2 The Council achieved an overall average interest rate of 0.20% on its investment 

portfolio: 

 

  Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 2021-22 

Long term investments > 364 days  n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Short term investments < 364 days  0.35% 0.37% 0.34% 0.51% 0.40% 

Instant Access Cash 0.01% 0.01% 0.02% 0.22% 0.07% 

Total 0.14% 0.14% 0.14% 0.33% 0.20% 

            

Bank of England base rate at end of period 0.10% 0.10% 0.25% 0.75% 0.75% 

 
7.3 The Council manages its investments in-house, investing only with institutions that 

meet the Council’s approved minimum lending criteria. The lending list is 
constructed based on credit ratings provided by the three main credit agencies 

supplemented by additional market data, using the Link Creditworthiness analysis 
(see Annex A for lending limits applied in 2021/22).  
 

  

Page 68



  

7.4 Money was invested with nine institutions during the year. All investments were 

placed in line with the Council’s approved lending limits. The table below 
summarises the institutions that the Council invested funds with during the 

financial year.  It also indicates the average daily investment, interest earned and 
the associated average interest rates. Interest rates vary depending on the length 
and timing of investments. The investment funds include those held short-term in 

the Council’s instant access accounts. The average daily investment during 
2021/22 was £21.4million. 

 

Financial Institution 
ESG 
linked 

Country of 
Domicile 

Duration 
Interest 
earned 

Average 
daily 
investment 

Rate 
of 
return 

Money market funds No UK Instant access £3,956 £6,555,205 0.06% 

Santander No UK 
95 & 180 day 
notice 

£24,110 £4,506,954 0.53% 

NatWest Bank No UK Instant access £449 £4,493,314 0.01% 

Barclays Yes UK 
65 and 95 day 
notice 

£3,558 £1,501,370 0.24% 

Bank of Scotland No UK Instant access £3,431 £1,185,170 0.29% 

Standard Chartered Yes UK 90-184 days £4,473 £1,156,164 0.39% 

Lloyds Bank No UK 95 day notice £500 £1,000,999 0.05% 

Handelsbanken No UK Instant access £1,808 £924,728 0.20% 

Nationwide Building 
Society 

No UK 92 to 153 days £469 £60,274 0.78% 

NatWest Bank 
Certificate of Deposit 

No UK 184 days £71 £5,479 1.30% 

Total       £42,825 £21,389,659 0.20% 

              

ESG proportion 12.42%     £8,031 £2,657,534 0.30% 

Barclays 

Linked to Barclays’ Green Bond Purchasing Programme which covers ‘a variety of 
thematic projects including energy efficiency, renewable energy, green transport, 

sustainable food, agriculture and forestry, waste management and greenhouse gas 
emission reduction’. 

Standard Chartered 

Standard Chartered operate this product under their 'Green and Sustainable Product 

Framework', which includes 'No poverty; zero hunger; good health and well -being; 
quality education; gender equality; clean water and sanitation; affordable and clean 
energy; decent work and economic growth; industry, innovation and infrastructure; 
reduced inequalities; sustainable cities and communities; responsible consumption 

and production; climate action; life below water; life on land; peace, justice and strong 
institutions; partnerships for the goals'. 

 

7.5 The average maturity of investment during the year was necessarily short to allow 
for continuing uncertainties over cashflow during the Covid-19 situation. The 
budget was set with an expectation of very low interest rate returns during the 

year. The investment income for the year was £43,039 (including £214 from local 

Page 69



  

loans) against the budget of £20,710. The £22,329 surplus has been achieved as 

a result of the base rate rises and consequent increased interest earning 
investment opportunities in quarter 4. 

 
7.6 Investments held at the 31st March 2022 are shown in the table below. All 

investments are for a period of one year or less: 
  

Financial Institution 
ESG 

linked 

Country 
of 

Domicile 

Principal invested 
at 31st March 2022 

Fixed/ 
variable 

Money market funds No UK £8,500,000 Variable 

Santander No UK £4,500,000 Variable 

Standard Chartered Yes UK £4,500,000 Fixed 

Nationwide Building 
Society 

No UK £3,000,000 Fixed 

Handelsbanken No UK £2,500,000 Variable 

NatWest No UK £786,096 Variable 

NatWest Bank 
Certificate of Deposit 

No UK £1,000,000 Fixed 

Barclays Yes UK £1,500,000 Variable 

Lloyds Bank No UK £1,000,000 Variable 

Total     £27,286,096   

          

ESG proportion 21.99%   £6,000,000   

 

  2021/22 31st March 2022 

  
Treasury Management 

Strategy 
Actual 

Principal sums invested >365 days  £3,500,000 £0 

  

Page 70



  

ANNEX A 

Current Lending Limits 
 

 

  UK International (AAA) 

  Individual Group Individual 

Category (per Link's 
creditworthiness 
model) 

Principal 
Limit 

Maximum 
Length 

Principal 
Limit 

Principal 
Limit 

Maximum 
Length 

NatWest (the Council's 
main bank account) 

£9.50m 1 year n/a n/a n/a 

Money market funds £6.25m 1 year £9.50m n/a n/a 

Yellow £6.25m 5 years n/a n/a n/a 

Purple £6.25m 2 years £9.50m £5.00m 2 years 

Orange £5.00m 1 year £7.50m £4.50m 1 year 

Red £4.50m 6 months £6.75m £3.75m 6 months 

Green £3.75m 100 days £5.75m £3.00m 100 days 

No colour - Not to be used   - Not to be used 

Local Authority £2.00m 1 year £6.25m n/a n/a 

 
 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Audit & Accounts Committee 
 

17 June 2022 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Treasury Management Update 
 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 

Councillor Worthington – Portfolio holder for 
Finance  

 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

Keith Pointon – Head of Finance 
Emily Bennetts – Finance Business Partner 

 
WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 
 

 
 

Appendices Attached – Appendix A – Treasury Management Update Report 

to 31st May 2022 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1 The purpose of the report is to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s 
Treasury Management performance in 2022/23 in compliance with the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of 

Practice on Treasury Management and generally accepted good practice. 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That Members note the current Treasury Management position as at 31st May 
2022. 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 This report is delivered in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public 

Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice for Treasury 

Management, which recommends that members be updated on treasury 
management activities regularly (annual, mid-year and quarterly reports).  

3.2 This report comprises the following: 
 

 The latest interest rate forecast; 

 The current investment portfolio and investment income projected for the 
year; 

 The capital loan (service investment – housing); 

 Projected borrowing requirements to support the capital programme with 

associated borrowing costs for the year; and 

Page 73

Agenda Item 7



  

 Compliance against prudential and treasury indicators set in the Treasury 
Management Strategy 2022/23. 

 

3.3 The main headlines are: 
 

 The Bank of England base rate increased from 0.75% to 1.00% in May 
2022. 
 

 Due to the subsequent increases in investment interest rates, a surplus of 
£72,770 is forecast against the investment income interest budget.  

 

 The Council’s investment portfolio totalled £23.3million spread across eight 

separate institutions as at 31st May 2022. 
 

 The capital loan (service investment – housing) is earning £307,000 

interest during the year. Borrowing costs of £214,350 to support this are 
included in the borrowing costs forecast outturn.  

 

 The Council’s average external debt is forecast to be £10.6million at an 

average annual borrowing rate of 1.56%. 
 

 The borrowing costs budget forecasts a total saving of £28,700, split 

between savings on the MRP charge and interest costs. 
 

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 An effective Treasury Management function is critical in safeguarding and 

effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. 
Sufficient financial resources are required to deliver and underpin all of the 

Council’s main priorities. 
 

5. Alternative Options 

 
5.1 This report sets out the Treasury Management position for Staffordshire 

Moorlands District Council for 2022/23 to date and the projected outturn. As 
such it is a statement of fact and there are no options. 

 

Martin Owen 
Executive Director (Finance and Customer Services) 

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

 
‘Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2022/23’ (Audit & 
Accounts Committee February 2022) 

Keith Pointon, Head of Finance 
Keith.Pointon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
 

Emily Bennetts, Finance Business Partner 
emily.bennetts@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Page 74



  

Appendix A 
    
    

    
    

 

 
 

 

Treasury Management Update  
31st May 2022 

 

 
1. Introduction  
 

2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates 
 

3. Investment Activity 
 

4. Capital loan (service investment – housing) 

 
5. Borrowing Position 

 
6. Prudential Indicators  

Page 75



  

1. Introduction  

 
1.1. Treasury Management is defined as “The management of the Authority’s 

investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; 

and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks”. 
 

1.2. This report is delivered in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public 

Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice for Treasury Management, 
which recommends that members be updated on treasury management 

activities regularly (annual, mid-year and quarterly reports).  
 

1.3. The Audit & Accounts Committee has delegated responsibility for scrutinising 

the treasury function.  The Committee’s role includes approval of the annual 
treasury management strategy and scrutiny of operational treasury 

management reports.  Decisions taken by the Audit & Accounts Committee are 
reported to full Council. 

 

1.4. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2022/23 was 
approved by Council on 23rd February 2022. This report details treasury 

management performance up to the 31st May 2022 and projects forward for the 
remainder of the financial year. 

 

2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates 

 
2.1. The Council’s treasury advisers, Link Asset Services (‘Link’), provide the latest 

bank rate and PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) forecast:  
 

% 
Jun-
22 

Sep-
22 

Dec-
22 

Mar-
23 

Jun-
23 

Sep-
23 

Dec-
23 

Mar-
24 

Jun-
24 

Sep-
24 

Dec-
24 

Mar-
25 

Jun-
25 

Bank Rate 1.25 1.50 1.75 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 1.75 1.75 1.75 1.75 1.75 

5yr PWLB 
rate 

2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 

10r PWLB 
rate 

2.80 2.80 2.90 2.90 2.90 2.90 2.90 2.90 2.80 2.80 2.80 2.80 2.80 

 

2.2. The Bank of England base rate increased to 1.00% on 5th May 2022 (from 
0.75% previously). The medium term forecast shows continuing rises 
throughout 2022, peaking at 2.00%, then a small reduction in the latter half of 

2024 to 1.75%. The forecast will be reviewed by Link during the year as they 
comment that financial markets are pricing in 2.50% by April 2023.  

 
2.3. The Council’s investment income budget was set against a much more modest 

forecast with base rate only reaching 0.75% by the end of 2022/23, therefore it 

is likely there will be surpluses achieved against the budget.   
 

2.4. Forecast PWLB rates are also greater than were anticipated at budget setting 
and the Local Authority market will be impacted by all these factors plus the 
levels of liquidity in the market which may be returning to more normal trends as 

the levels of grant cash flowing through Councils from central government to 
businesses and residents potentially reduce. 

Page 76



  

 
3. Investment Activity  

 

3.1. The Council has budgeted to receive £79,390 in investment income in 2022/23, 
based on the modest interest rate rise forecast as described above. At this early 

stage in the year a surplus of £72,770 is forecast against the budget.  
 
3.2. The Council manages its investments in-house and invests with financial 

institutions meeting the Council’s approved lending criteria as detailed in the 
Treasury Management Strategy for the year; and investment priorities of 

Security of Capital, Liquidity and Yield (SLY). The Council’s investment portfolio 
at 31st May totalled £23,312,000:: 

 

Counterparty 
Country 

of 
Domicile 

Amount 
Interest rate 

at end of 
period 

Maturity 
period 

Link 
counterparty 

limit 

Standard Chartered UK £4,500,000 0.65-1.43% 61-184 days 6 months 

Santander UK £4,500,000 0.74-0.87% 95-180 days 6 months 

Money Market 
Funds 

UK £4,400,000 0.89% 
instant 
access 

12 months 

Nationwide Building 
Society 

UK £3,000,000 0.66-0.79% 92-153 days 6 months 

Handelsbanken UK £2,500,000 0.59% 
instant 
access 

12 months 

Barclays UK £1,500,000 0.75-0.80% 65-95 days 6 months 

NatWest Bank 
Certificate of 
Deposit 

UK £1,000,000 1.30% 184 days 12 months 

Lloyds Bank 
Certificate of 
Deposit 

UK £1,000,000 1.07% 124 days 6 months 

NatWest Bank UK £912,000 0.10% 
instant 
access 

12 months 

Total   £23,312,000     
  

ESG proportion of 
portfolio 

25.74% £6,000,000       

Barclays 

Linked to Barclays’ Green Bond Purchasing Programme which covers ‘a variety 
of thematic projects including energy efficiency, renewable energy, green 
transport, sustainable food, agriculture and forestry, waste management and 
greenhouse gas emission reduction’. 

Standard Chartered 

Standard Chartered operate this product under their 'Green and Sustainable 
Product Framework', which includes 'No poverty; zero hunger; good health and 
well-being; quality education; gender equality; clean water and sanitation; 
affordable and clean energy; decent work and economic growth; industry, 
innovation and infrastructure; reduced inequalities; sustainable cities and 
communities; responsible consumption and production; climate action; life below 
water; life on land; peace, justice and strong institutions; partnerships for the 
goals'. 

 

Page 77



  

4. Capital loan (Service investment – Housing) 

 
4.1. There is a capital loan (service investment – housing) of £10million to Your 

Housing Limited to support the maintenance of and provision of affordable 
housing within the Staffordshire Moorlands District. The loan has a maturity of 

10 years (due February 2032). Interest is chargeable at 3.07% (including a 
0.80% risk premium), therefore £307,000 is receivable in the year. This is a 
small shortfall of £1,000 against the budget. Borrowing costs of £214,350 to 

support this are included in the borrowing costs forecast outturn below. 
 

5. Borrowing Position 
 

5.1. In accordance with the Local Government Act 2003, it is a statutory duty of the 
Council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to borrow.  

Therefore, the Council establishes ‘affordable borrowing limits’ as part of the 
prudential indicators within the approved Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement. 

 
5.2. The Council’s external borrowing at the start of the year was £12.6million. 

£1.5million local authority borrowing has matured in May and a further 
£3.5million is due to mature between July and October. The current forecast 
includes new borrowing of £2.5million mid-year to support the general fund 

underlying borrowing need. 
 

5.3. This and any refinancing will be kept under review during the year as the capital 
programme is carried out, alongside views about cash flow and interest rate 
changes. 

 
5.4. Average borrowing during the year is anticipated to be £10.6million with interest 

at 1.56%. There is a saving forecast of £28,700 against the borrowing cost 
budget of £407,310, owing to a smaller forecast MRP charge and interest costs. 

 

5.5. The ‘operational boundary’ (£28,408,000) and ‘authorised limit’ (£29,908,000) 
indicators govern the maximum level of external borrowing to fund the capital 

programme, plus any short-term liquidity requirements. They were set through the 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement to account for the general fund 
borrowing requirement; an allowance for borrowing to cover short-term liquidity; 

and funding of the Capital loan (service investment – housing). The current level 
of borrowing is well within prudential limits. 

 
5.6. The maturity profile of the loans is considered when undertaking external 

borrowing to ensure maturity dates are evenly spread so that the Council is not 

exposed to a substantial re-financing requirement at any one time, when interest 
rates could be high. The graph below details the maturity profile of current loans. 

 

Page 78



  

 
 
5.7. The treasury team, along with Link, monitors opportunities to reschedule debt, i.e. 

reorganise existing debt in such a way as to amend the debt repayments, reduce 

the principal sum borrowed, alter the degree of volatility of debt or vary the 
interest payable, in order to manage risk and achieve overall financial benefit to 

the Council taking account of the premium the Council would expect to pay on 
early redemption compared to the potential interest savings. No debt 
rescheduling has taken place during the year. 

 
6. Prudential Indicators 

 
6.1. All treasury management operations have been conducted in full compliance with 

the Council’s Treasury Management Practices and within the treasury 

management and prudential indicators set in its Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement 2022/23. The Executive Director and Chief Finance Officer reports that 

no difficulties are envisaged for the current or future years in complying with these 
indictors. 

£0

£1,000,000

£2,000,000

£3,000,000

£4,000,000

£5,000,000

£6,000,000

Less than 1 year 1 - 2 years 2 - 5 years 6 - 10 years

Maturity Profile 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Audit & Accounts Committee 
 

17 June 2022 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Internal Audit Charter 
 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 

Councillor Michael Worthington – Portfolio 
Holder for Finance 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

John Leak - Head of Audit 
 
WARDS INVOLVED: 

 

 

Non-Specific  

 
Appendices Attached: 
Appendix 1 Internal Audit Charter 

 

 
1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to “undertake 
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 

control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance”. The Audit Charter provides a framework for 
the operation of the Internal Audit service and is required by the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which require the Charter to be approved by 
the ‘Board’, which for the Council’s purpose is the Audit & Accounts 

Committee. 
 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the committee approve the Council’s Internal Audit Charter. 

 
 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 The Internal Audit Charter is a formal document that defines Internal Audit’s 

purpose, authority and responsibility. The Charter establishes Internal Audit’s 
position within the organisation, including the nature of the Head of Audit’s 
functional reporting relationship with the Audit Committee; authorises access 

to records, personnel and physical properties relevant to the performance of 
engagements; and defines the scope of Internal Audit’s activities. 

 
3.2 The Internal Audit Charter has been reviewed to ensure continued compliance 

with the requirements of the PSIAS effective from March 2017 and is attached 
as Appendix 1. 

Page 81

Agenda Item 9



  

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual 

Governance Statement and therefore helps to confirm effective use of financial 
and other resources to ensure value for money. 

 
 

5. Alternative Options 

 
5.1 Approve the Internal Audit Charter (Recommended). The Council will have a 

formal document that defines Internal Audit’s purpose, authority and 
responsibility and is in accordance with the requirements of Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards, and therefore the Accounts and Audit Regulations 

2015. 
 

5.2 Do not approve the Internal Audit Charter (Not Recommended). The Council 
will not be complying with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
requirement to “undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 

effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, 
taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance”. 

 
 

ANDREW P STOKES 

Chief Executive 

 
Web Links and 

Background Papers 

Contact details 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards John Leak 
Head of Audit 

john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
 

 

 

  

Page 82



  

6. Detail 
 

6.1 The Internal Audit Charter provides a framework for the operation of the 

Internal Audit service and is required by the PSIAS. PSIAS require the Charter 
to be approved by the ‘Board’, which for the Council’s purpose is the Audit & 

Accounts Committee. 
 
6.2 The Internal Audit Charter is a formal document that defines Internal Audit’s 

purpose, authority and responsibility. The PSIAS require that it should: 
 

 recognise the mandatory nature of the PSIAS; 

 define the scope of Internal Audit activities; 

 establish the responsibilities and objectives of Internal Audit; 

 establish the organisational independence of Internal Audit; 

 establish the accountability, reporting lines and relationships between the 

Head of Audit and the Audit Committee and those to whom the Head of 
Audit reports to functionally and administratively; 

 set out the responsibility of the Audit Committee and also the role of the 
statutory officers with regards to Internal Audit; 

 set out the arrangements that exist within the organisations counter-fraud 
and corruption strategy, requiring the Head of Audit to be notified of all 
suspected or detected fraud, corruption or impropriety, to inform the 

annual Internal Audit opinion and the risk-based plan; 

 recognise that Internal Audit’s remit extends to the entire control 

environment of the organisation and not just financial controls; 

 establish Internal Audits right of access to all records, assets, personnel 

and premises, including those of partner organisations where appropriate, 
and its authority to obtain such information and explanations as it 
considers necessary to fulfil its responsibilities. 

 
6.3 The PSIAS also specifies that the Internal Audit Charter must: 

 

 define the terms “board” and “senior management” for the purposes of 
Internal Audit activity; 

 cover the arrangements for appropriate resourcing; 

 define the role of Internal Audit in any fraud related work; and 

 describe safeguards to limit impairments of independence or objectivity if 
Internal Audit or the Head of Audit undertakes non-audit activities.  

 
6.4 The current Internal Audit Charter was previously approved by this Committee 

in June 2021. The Charter has therefore been reviewed to ensure continued 

compliance with the requirements of the PSIAS effective from March 2017 
(Appendix 1). No changes have been made to the Charter. 

 
6.5 The Internal Audit Charter will be reviewed periodically or in the event of any 

significant changes. Updated versions will be submitted to the Audit & 

Accounts Committee for approval when required. 
 

 
 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



  

APPENDIX 1 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Charter 

 

 

 

June 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 85



 

Internal Audit Charter June 2022 Table of Contents 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

            

            

 

  PAGE 

  

   

 INTRODUCTION………………………………………………………………………………… 1 

   

 MISSION, DEFINITION & PURPOSE OF INTERNAL AUDIT…..…………………………. 1 

   

 STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS………………………………………………………………. 1 

  

 INDEPENDENCE………………………………………………………………………………... 2 

   

 AUTHORITY & RIGHTS OF ACCESS………………………………………………………... 2 

   

 OBJECTIVES OF INTERNAL AUDIT…………………………………………………………. 3 

   

 SCOPE………………………………………………………………………………………….... 3 

   

 RESPONSIBILITIES…………………………………………………………………………….. 4 

   

 OBJECTIVITY & CONFIDENTIALITY………………………………………………………… 5 

   

 INTERNAL AUDIT RESOURCES……………………………………………………………... 5 

   

 INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGEMENT…………………………………………………………… 6 

   

 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN……………………………………………………………………….. 6 

   

 REPORTING ACCOUNTABILITIES…………………………………………………………... 7 

   

 QUALITY ASSURANCE & IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME……………………………….  7 

   

Page 86



 

Internal Audit Charter June 2022 Page 1 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

INTRODUCTION 
 

The internal audit charter is a formal document that defines Internal Audit’s purpose, authority and 

responsibility. The charter establishes Internal Audit’s position within the organisation, including the 

nature of the Head of Audit’s functional reporting relationship with the Audit Committee1; authorises 

access to records, personnel and physical properties relevant to the performance of engagements; 

and defines the scope of Internal Audit’s activities.  

MISSION, DEFINITION & PURPOSE OF INTERNAL AUDIT 
 

The Mission provided in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) is: 

 

“To enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk -based and objective assurance, 

advice and insight.” 

 

The definition provided in the PSIAS is:  

 

“Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add 

value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives 

by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk  

management, control and governance processes.” 

 

Internal Audit is therefore an assurance function which primarily provides an independent and 

objective opinion to the Council on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of its framework of 

governance, risk management and control. Internal Audit does this by conducting an independent 

appraisal of all of the Council’s activities, financial and otherwise. It provides a service to the whole 

of the Council and to all levels of management. 

 

Internal Audit will work in accordance with the Core Principles for the Professional Practice of 

Internal Auditing as set out in the PSIAS: 

 

 Demonstrates integrity; 

 Demonstrates competence and due professional care; 

 Is objective and free from undue influence (independent); 

 Aligns with the strategies, objectives, and risks of the organisation; 

 Is appropriately positioned and adequately resourced; 

 Demonstrates quality and continuous improvement; 

 Communicates effectively; 

 Provides risk-based assurance; 

 Is insightful, proactive, and future-focused; 

 Promotes organisational improvement. 

STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS 
 

The requirement for an Internal Audit function derives from local government legislation, including 

section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 which requires that all Local Authorities must “make 

arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs”. More specific requirements are 

set out in the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which require the Council to “undertake an 

effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance 

processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance. ”  

 

This authority is reinforced in the Council’s Financial Regulations and Procedure Rules.  

                                                 
1 The Audit Committee will fulfi l the roles and responsibil ities of “The Board” for the purposes of the PSIAS.  

Page 87



 

Internal Audit Charter June 2022 Page 2 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

INDEPENDENCE 
 
The Internal Audit service will remain independent of the systems and procedures which are subject 

to its review. Internal Audit will also remain free from interference by any element of the Council and 

the scope of its work will not be restricted in any way. 

 

To enable the auditors to perform their duties in a manner which facilitates impartial and effective 

professional judgements and recommendations, Internal Audit staff will not be responsible for 

activities outside of Internal Audit’s main responsibilities. All audit staff will act with due professional 

care ensuring that they are fair and objective, free from any conflicts of interest and abide by 

professional standards and guidelines. 

 

In seeking to provide an independent and objective opinion it is accepted that, being located within 

the organisation, the Internal Audit function cannot be wholly independent of all management. 

Internal Audit’s independence will therefore be achieved through its organisational status and from 

the fact that the Head of Audit has no other areas of responsibility other than the Internal Audit 

function.  

 

The Head of Audit reports to the Chief Executive but has the right to report directly to the Executive 

Director (Finance & Customer Services) and Chief Finance Officer (s151 Officer), Monitoring Officer, 

Chair of the Audit Committee or External Auditor where it is deemed necessary. The Chief 

Executive has other areas of responsibility which may compromise their independence when these 

areas are subjected to audit, where this occurs the Head of Audit can invoke the right to report 

directly to others.   

 

The Head of Audit will make the Audit Committee aware if the independence of Internal Audit is 

impaired or appears to be impaired. The nature of such a disclosure will depend upon the nature of 

the impairment.  

 

Audit advice and recommendations, including where Internal Audit has been consulted about 

system, policy, procedure development or significant changes to the internal control systems, are 

given without prejudice to the right of Internal Audit to review and make further recommendations on 

the relevant policies, procedures, controls and operations at a later date. 

  

The Internal Audit service determines its work priorities in consultation with Senior Management 

Team (ALT2) and the Audit Committee and the Head of Audit reports to the Audit Committee in 

relation to the delivery of the Internal Audit Plan, the Internal Audit Annual Report and periodic 

updates of Internal Audit work. 

 

The Head of Audit is responsible for the content of all written reports produced by the service and 

has the right to report in his own name and offer an audit opinion without “fear or favour” to all 

officers and members and in particular to those charged with governance. 

AUTHORITY & RIGHTS OF ACCESS 
 

In order to perform their duties Internal Audit has the authority, supported by the Accounts & Audit 

Regulations 2015 and set out in the Council’s Financial Regulations  and Procedure Rules, to:  

  

 access all Council premises at reasonable times; 

 access all assets, records, documents, correspondence and control systems; 

 receive any information and explanation considered necessary concerning any matter under 

consideration; 

 require any employee of the Council to account for cash, stores or any other Council asset 

under his or her control; 

 access records belonging to third parties, such as contractors, when required; and 

                                                 
2 The Alliance Leadership Team will fulfi l the roles and responsibil ities of “senior management” for the purposes of 

the PSIAS. 

Page 88



 

Internal Audit Charter June 2022 Page 3 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

 directly access the Chief Executive, Executive, Standards and Audit Committees.  

 

Where necessary such unrestricted rights of access may be called upon and should be granted to 

Internal Auditors on demand and not subject to prior notice or approval. All employees are required 

to assist Internal Audit in fulfilling its roles and responsibilities.  

  

The Internal Audit service will comply with any requests from External Auditors for access to any 

information, files or working papers obtained or prepared during audit work that they need in order to 

discharge their responsibilities. 

OBJECTIVES OF INTERNAL AUDIT 
 

The objective of the Internal Audit service is to give assurance to the Council on the adequacy of its 

governance arrangements. The key elements of this are: 

 

 to provide advice and support to ensure an effective control environment is maintained including 

completeness, reliability and integrity of financial, performance, risk and other management 

information and the methods for safeguarding assets; 

 to contribute to the achievement of corporate objectives by recommending improvements in 

control and performance of the systems established to ensure compliance with corporate and 

departmental policies and procedures and legislative requirements; and 

 to provide advice and guidance to ensure Managers have developed effective arrangements to 

promote appropriate ethics and values within the Council and arrangements to prevent and 

detect fraud and corruption. This will include input into the key policies such as Financial 

Regulations and Procedure Rules and Counter-fraud and Corruption Strategy. 

SCOPE 
 

All of the Council’s activities, regardless of funding source, may be subject to review by Internal 

Audit as Internal Audit’s remit allows for unrestricted coverage of the Authority’s entire control 

environment taking into account the Authority’s assurance and monitoring mechanisms, including 

risk management arrangements, for achieving the Council’s objectives. This does not imply that all 

systems will be subjected to review in any given year, but that all systems will be included in the 

audit planning process and hence be considered for review following the assessment of risk. 

 

The scope of audit work extends to services provided through partnership arrangements and 

necessary assurances will be derived either directly or by seeking reliance on assurances provided 

by others. Where relevant, appropriate access rights will be negotiated and included in contracts 

and partnership agreements to ensure that Internal Audit can obtain access to the personnel and 

records within the partner organisation to obtain the necessary assurances.  

 

It is not the remit of the Internal Audit service to question the appropriateness of policy decisions. 

However, the service is required to examine the management arrangements of the Council by which 

such decisions are made, monitored and reviewed, how polices are applied by the Council and also 

compliance with agreed policies.  

 

The Internal Audit service may also conduct special reviews, providing independent and objective 

services such as consultancy and fraud related work as requested by Management.  Due 

consideration will be given when planning this work to ensure that the service maintains its 

objectivity and independence. The impact of any additional work outside of the audit plan will be 

taken into account and where necessary reported to the Chief Executive and the Audit Committee. 

 

Internal Audit does not have responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud or corruption. It is 

the responsibility of all Managers to manage the risk of fraud by ensuring appropriate procedures 

are put in place to prevent and detect fraud. Internal Auditors will however, be alert in all their work 

to risks and exposures that could allow fraud or corruption to occur and to any indications that fraud 

Page 89



 

Internal Audit Charter June 2022 Page 4 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

or corruption may have been occurring. Audit procedures alone, even when performed with due 

professional care, cannot guarantee that fraud or corruption will be detected. Internal Audit will 

investigate any suspected fraud and corruption arising from their work and may also be requested 

by management to assist with the investigation of suspected fraud and corruption.  

 

In line with the Council’s Counter-fraud and Corruption Strategy, the Head of Audit should be notified 

of all suspected or detected fraud, corruption or impropriety within the Council. Where relevant the 

Internal Audit service will advise and assist Managers in the investigation of fraud and corruption.  

RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

The Council has a responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of the 

governance arrangements and producing an Annual Governance Statement.  The review of the 

effectiveness of the governance arrangements is informed by: 

 

 the work of the internal auditors;  

 information from managers within the Authority who have responsibility for the development and 

maintenance of governance arrangements; and 

 comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. 

 

To assist with this review the Head of Audit will produce an annual internal audit report summarising 

the areas that have been subject to Internal Audit review in the year. This annual report will include 

an opinion, based on the areas examined, on whether the Council’s governance arrangements, 

including those for economy, efficiency and effectiveness, are adequate and have been properly 

applied in the year. 

  

In order to provide the required opinion the Internal Audit service will undertake a programme of work 

which will aim to achieve the following objectives: 

 

 to appraise the soundness, adequacy and application of the Council’s system of internal control; 

  

 to determine the reliability and integrity of financial and other information including that used in 

decision making, and the methods used to identify, measure, classify and report such 

information; 

 to ascertain the extent to which the systems of internal control ensure compliance with 

established policies and procedures; 

 to ascertain the extent to which the assets and interests of the Council are properly controlled 

and safeguarded from loss; 

 to appraise the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which resources are employed;  

 to investigate fraud and irregularities or significant breaches of the internal control system, where 

appropriate. 

 

Managers are responsible for ensuring that adequate internal control arrangements exist in relation 

to the risks facing their Services. They are also responsible for ensuring that staff are aware of 

processes and procedure rules required to operate the control systems. This responsibility includes 

the duty to continuously review internal controls and ensure that they remain suitable in design and 

effective in operation. The existence of Internal Audit does not diminish the responsibility of 

management to establish and maintain systems of internal control to ensure that activities are 

conducted in a secure, efficient and effective manner. 

 

Management can assist the process of Internal Audit by: 

 

 providing access at all reasonable times to premises, personnel, documents and assets that the 

auditors consider necessary for the purposes of their work; 

 giving information and explanations that are sought in the course of their work; 

 commenting on and inputting to the audit plan and the terms of reference for each review to 

ensure attention is focussed on areas of greatest risk or concern;  

 early notification of plans for change, including new operational systems and processes; 

Page 90



 

Internal Audit Charter June 2022 Page 5 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

 considering and responding promptly to recommendations in audit reports, either accepting and 

implementing recommendations or formally rejecting it and therefore accepting the risks involved 

in doing so; 

 ensuring agreed actions arising from audit recommendations are carried out in a timely and 

efficient fashion; 

 notifying the s151 Officer / Head of Audit immediately of any suspected fraud, theft, irregularity, 

improper use or misappropriation of the Authority’s property or resources. Pending investigation 

and reporting, the Director should take all necessary steps to prevent further loss and to secure 

records and documentation against removal or alteration; and 

 acting in line with the Authority’s disciplinary procedures. 

OBJECTIVITY & CONFIDENTIALITY 
 

Internal Auditors must demonstrate the highest level of professional objectivity in gathering, 

evaluating and communicating information about the function or process being examined. They 

must make a balanced assessment of all relevant circumstances and not be unduly influenced by 

their own interests or by others in forming judgements. 

  

All Internal Auditors working in Local Government are required to comply with the Code of Ethics 

contained in PSIAS in addition to any requirements placed on them by the Council or any other 

Professional Body that they are members of. 

 

All records, documentation and information accessed in the course of undertaking Internal Audit 

activities shall be used solely for that purpose. The Head of Audit and individual Internal Auditors 

(including contractors and external providers performing work on behalf of Internal Audit) are 

responsible and accountable for maintaining the confidentiality of the information they receive during 

the course of their work.  

 

Whilst Audit Reports are confidentially directed to the recipients named, they are subject to the 

provisions of the Freedom of Information Act and, as such, may be required to be made publicly 

available upon request.  Before responding to any request to make Audit Reports publicly available, 

or otherwise making them publicly available, the Head of Audit should be consulted and where 

necessary elements of the report can be redacted. Similarly, Audit Reports, or extracts from them, 

should not be included in, or appended to, any Council Report, nor should they be quoted as a 

background paper to any Committee Report without firstly consulting with the Head of Audit. 

INTERNAL AUDIT RESOURCES 
 

The Council has a duty to provide sufficient resources to allow an adequate and effective Internal 

Audit service to be provided. Where it is felt that the resources are inadequate to meet the 

objectives of the Internal Audit service, the Head of Audit will formally report this to the Chief 

Executive and s151 Officer, and, if the position is not resolved, to the Audit Committee.  

 

Internal Audit must be appropriately staffed in terms of numbers, qualification levels and experience, 

having regard to its objectives and to the PSIAS. The Head of Audit will hold a relevant professional 

qualification (CMIIA, CCAB or equivalent) and be suitably experienced. The s151 Officer will be 

involved in the recruitment of the Head of Audit. 

 

The Head of Audit is responsible for ensuring that Internal Auditors receive appropriate training and 

experience to fulfil their duties and that levels of professional competence are maintained via the use 

of continual professional development. 

 

Where necessary, access to appropriate specialists from other departments or external sources 

should be made available to the Internal Audit service to assist in any audit, project or investigation 

requiring detailed specialist knowledge. 

 

 

Page 91



 

Internal Audit Charter June 2022 Page 6 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGEMENT 
 

The Head of Audit is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Internal Audit service and 

fulfils the requirements of the “Chief Audit Executive” role required by the PSIAS. The Head of Audit 

will: 

  

 prepare an audit plan to review all relevant areas, and will update this plan if required to take 

account of changes in Council priorities and risks. The audit plan will be submitted to the Audit 

Committee annually for approval; 

 produce detailed audit programmes setting out the scope and objectives of each audit 

assignment, timescales and reporting arrangements; 

 ensure that work is completed to high standards in accordance with relevant professional 

standards; 

 ensure that a written audit report is produced for each assignment, giving an assurance opinion 

on the adequacy of the control environment and identifying actions to address any weaknesses; 

 ensure that audit reports are formally discussed with relevant Managers, an action plan is 

completed to reflect agreed actions and comments are recorded relating to each audit 

recommendation, together with the timescale for completion and the responsible officers. If a 

recommendation is not agreed by the Manager, this must also be stated; 

 ensure that follow-up work is undertaken to monitor the implementation of agreed management 

actions; 

 establish and maintain effective relationships with managers of all levels and obtain feedback 

from them on the effectiveness of the service; 

 establish and maintain effective relationships with the External Auditors; 

 develop and maintain a quality assurance and improvement programme covering all aspects of 

Internal Audit activity. 

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 
 

The work of the Internal Audit service is based on the delivery of a risk based annual Audit Plan and 

is conducted on a predominantly risk based systems audit approach. The Head of Audit prepares a 

new Audit Plan each year in line with the requirements of the PSIAS and this is presented to the 

Audit Committee for approval. 

 

The Audit Plan is derived from all of the areas that have been identified for review (the audit 

universe). Internal Audit undertakes a risk assessment of the audit universe based on an 

established best practice risk scoring model which takes into account a number of criteria including 

corporate strategic risks and risks identified from other sources of external and internal assurance. 

The Audit Plan is then determined based on the outcome of this process.  

 

Within the annual Audit Plan the Head of Audit will balance several key requirements. These 

include: 

 

 the performance targets for the service; 

 the need to ensure core financial systems are adequately reviewed to provide assurance that 

management has in place proper arrangements for financial control, on which the external 

auditors will place reliance; 

 the need to appropriately review all other strategic and operational systems; 

 having a contingency allowance to deal with unplanned work which may arise in the year 

including special investigations and consultancy. 

 

Achievement of the Audit Plan is a key priority for the Service. The Head of Audit will continually 

monitor the completion of the Annual Audit Plan. Where the Audit  Plan is not being achieved the 

Head of Audit will be responsible for identifying the reasons for this and where possible take the 

necessary corrective action. 

 

Page 92



 

Internal Audit Charter June 2022 Page 7 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

 

REPORTING ACCOUNTABILITIES 
 

The Head of Audit reports to the Chief Executive but has the right to report directly to the Executive 

Director (Finance & Customer Services) and Chief Finance Officer (s151 Officer) and Chief Finance 

Officer, Monitoring Officer, Chair of the Audit Committee or External Auditor where it is deemed 

necessary. The Statutory Officers will support the work of Internal Audit and provide the necessary 

backing to ensure that key weaknesses are addressed and recommendations implemented and 

support Internal Audit’s position in upholding good governance within the Council. Statutory Officers 

should also ensure that the Internal Audit service is provided with all necessary advice, explanations 

and information needed for them to effectively carry out their role.  

 

The Head of Audit will present the annual audit plan to members of the Audit Committee for 

approval. Regular reports outlining progress against the Internal Audit Plan and summarising the 

assurances given for completed audits will also be presented to the Audit Committee.  

 

An annual report will be presented to the Audit Committee summarising the work undertaken 

throughout the year and providing an overall opinion on the Council’s internal control environment. 

This report is a key source of assurance for the Council’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS).  

The report will: 

 

 disclose any qualifications to that opinion together with the reasons for the qualification; 

 draw attention to any issues judged relevant to the preparation of the Annual Governance 

Statement;  

 compare work actually undertaken with the work planned and summarise performance of the 

Internal Audit service against its performance targets. 

 

A written report will be prepared for every internal audit review and actions agreed with the relevant 

Manager. The report will be issued to the responsible Manager, Head of Service, Director and Chief 

Finance Officer. The report includes an ‘opinion’ on the adequacy of controls in the area that has 

been audited. Every Internal Audit Report is subject to a regular follow-up in accordance with the 

Audit Service’s formalised follow-up system, in order to ascertain whether the action stated by 

management in their response to the report has been implemented by the agreed due dates. Failure 

to agree or implement fundamental recommendations will be reported to the s151 Officer, Chief 

Executive and the Audit Committee as appropriate. 

 

The Head of Audit will report to the s151 Officer any serious weaknesses or significant fraud 

identified from the course of Internal Audit work or reported to Internal Audit. The matter may also be 

reported to the Chief Executive, the external auditors and the Audit Committee as appropriate. 

QUALITY ASSURANCE & IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME 
 

The Head of Audit will develop and maintain a Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 

(QAIP) in accordance with PSIAS. The QAIP will form the basis of the annual review of the system 

of internal audit as required by the PSIAS. For Internal Audit services operating in Local Government 

proper practice is now deemed to be PSIAS plus the Local Government Application Note (LGAN). 

 

The QAIP will show conformance with PSIAS/LGAN requirements and will offer explanations where 

conformance with PSIAS/LGAN is not achieved. An action plan may be developed as a result of the 

QAIP to achieve or improve levels of conformance. The outcome of the review and any resulting 

action plan will be reported to the Audit Committee and a statement regarding conformance with the 

PSIAS will be included in the Internal Audit Annual Report.  

 

An independent external review of Internal Audit will be carried out as part of the QAIP at least once 

every five years.  

 

Where non-conformance with PSIAS/LGAN impacts on the overall scope or operation of Internal 

Page 93



 

Internal Audit Charter June 2022 Page 8 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

Audit activity the nature of the impact will be disclosed to the Audit Committee. Serious deviations 

from conformance will need to be considered for inclusion in the Council’s Annual Governance 

Statement. 

 

Page 94



AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23 
  

Item  
Sept 
 2022 

Nov 
 2022 

Feb 
2023 

June 
2023 

Details  

INTERNAL AUDIT      

Internal Audit Progress Report     
Reports on progress against the audit plan inc. key 
performance information. 

Annual Audit Plan    
 To consider and approve the Annual Audit Pan. 

Internal Audit Annual Report  
   To consider Internal Audit’s annual report and opinion 

on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control environment. 

Annual Review of Effectiveness of IA  
   To consider an annual review of the effectiveness of 

the Council’s system of internal audit. 

Internal Audit Charter 
 

   
To consider updates to the formal document that 
defines Internal Audit’s purpose, authority and 
responsibility. (as required) 

EXTERNAL AUDIT      

Audit Committee Update  

 
 

   

A summary of emerging national issues and 
developments that the Committee may wish to 

consider. Also provides a summary of progress on the 
audit – where not covered by other items on the 
agenda. 

Audit  Plan 

  

  
Report specifying the detailed risks that external audit 

consider as part of their work, the audit approach and 
the result of any interim work 

Audit Findings Report   
  To consider the external auditor’s report to those 

charged with governance on issues arising from the 

audit of the accounts and the VFM conclusion. 

Auditor’s Annual Report 
 

   
To consider the external auditor’s annual report on 
their overall assessment of the Council. 

Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 
  

  
To consider the risk assessment and understanding of 
management processes. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 95

A
genda Item

 12



Item  
Sept 

 2022 

Nov 

 2022 

Feb 

 2023 

June 

 2023 
Details  

FINANCE      

Statement of Accounts   
  To review and approve the Council’s annual 

Statement of Accounts. 

Treasury Management Update     
Oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury 
Management position to date and the projected 
outturn. 

Annual Treasury Management Report     

To recommend to Council for approval the annual 

Treasury Management Report summarising 
performance and compliance with the Strategy and 
Prudential Indicators. 

Treasury Management Strategy  
 

 
 Oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury 

Management Strategy. 

Financial Management Code      
Self-assessment against the principles of the FM 
Code. 

CORPORATE      

Annual Governance Statement (AGS)   
  To review and approve the Annual Governance 

Statement and the underlying assurance evaluation 
process and supporting evidence. 

AGS Progress Against Action Plan 

 

  
 Report on progress made against the actions raised 

as part of the previous years Annual Governance 
Statement process. 

Risk Management Update 
 

   
Report on developments in the Council’s risk 
management arrangements. 

Risk Management Strategy 
 

   
Update of the Risk Management Strategy (biennial 

February) 

Counter Fraud & Corruption Strategy 
 

   To consider updates to the Council’s Counter Fraud 
& Corruption Strategy. (as required) 

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act Policy 
& Procedures 

 
   

To consider updates to the Council’s Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act Policy & Procedures. (as 

required) 

Whistleblowing Policy 
 

   
To consider updates to the Council’s Whistleblowing 
Policy. (as required) 

AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE      

Agree Programme of Work     To agree future work programme of A&A Committee. 

Review of Effectiveness of A&A Committee 

inc. Terms of Reference 
 

   To consider the annual review of the effectiveness of 
the Audit & Accounts Committee and the A&A 
Committee’s Terms of Reference. 

  

P
age 96


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 External Audit - Audit Plan
	5 Risk Management Update
	Appendix A for Risk Management Update
	Appendix B for Risk Management Update
	Appendix C for Risk Management Update
	Appendix D for Risk Management Update

	6 Annual Treasury Management Report
	Appendix A 1 for Annual Treasury Management Report

	7 Treasury Management Update
	Appendix A 1 for Treasury Management Update

	9 Internal Audit Charter
	Appendix A 1 for Internal Audit Charter

	12 Work Programme

